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Deloitte.

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CRYSTAL INTERNATIONAL GROUP
LIMITED

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability and registered by way of
continuation in the Cayman Islands)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Crystal
International Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “"Group”) set out on pages 71 to 189,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position at 31
December 2018, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group at 31
December 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs"”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing (“ISAs"”). Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

BREITEE

Impairment assessment of goodwill and an intangible
asset with indefinite useful life

BB R A AR R ] & 5 F R A T B E 1Y el (E 77 AL

We identified the impairment assessment of goodwill and an intangible
asset with indefinite useful life, namely brand name, which are
allocated to the cash-generating unit (“CGU") of Vista Corp Holdings
Limited (“Vista") as a key audit matter because of the significance of
the balances to the consolidated statement of financial position as a
whole and the significant degree of judgment made by management in
the assessment process.
ZMeEEEmERAEERAEAFHEREE (B S B E Vista Corp
Holdings Limited ([ Vista]) IR @ E £ BN ([ REEEENM ) NRE)
BRENEIERBAREAFTE  EHRNEREGEMBIRARERY
BEUMAREBBEAE AT EERETNEERE -

Determining whether goodwill and the intangible asset with indefinite
useful life are impaired requires management'’s estimation of the value
in use of the CGU business to which the goodwill and the intangible
asset with indefinite useful life have been allocated. The value in use
calculation requires the management of the Group to estimate the
future cash flows expected to arise from the CGU which includes key
assumptions for cash flow projections, including yearly growth rates of
revenue, gross margin, discount rate and management’s expectation
of market conditions. Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, a material impairment loss may arise.
EECTHERAERACHAFHEN EERTRERFTEETEEEL
HEESERERAERRAGCAFHELEENREELEMLEBR
REBNMGE - HFREEFEFTE EXEERELAREELENR
HeE+RRRERE  BERRESRERNNBERER (2EKE
FRERE  ENE BRELEEEHMANTER) - MEFRKRE
ME DRI - FIeLE £ EAREEIE -

B ERTE IR
RREAFHESRERMNEXHE B8
ARG EUBRENEAFRA/EENEH 5
LEHEAERMBABBRAMBHRRLLA
BREEITRIEN - HATSHELEHER
BEENER -

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

BAWESTNNEERRETER

Our procedures in relation to the impairment
assessment of goodwill and the intangible
asset with indefinite useful life included:
BMEERELEERAERFHELEED
BER BT

o Understanding the entity’'s key control in
relation to the impairment assessment of
goodwill and the intangible asset with
indefinite useful life, including the
process of preparation of the future cash
flow projections and key assumptions
adopted by management in the cash
flow projections;
THRERBEHNERAEERAERAFHE
EEEHNRMETHOEREZES - BER
BARRBEREBANBERERER
RensailaR P ERAn BE/RE

o Evaluating the appropriateness of the
key assumptions in the cash flow
projections, including yearly growth
rates of revenue, gross margin and
management'’s expectation of market
conditions by reference to the historical
performance, future business plan of
the Group as well as industrial trends;
FHER RSN ERRR (BREKE
FREXR EFEUARERE2ERA
=B - BERERKREBTEIRITEBY
BETRANTER) REHEE
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Key audit matter

BRETEE

Impairment assessment of goodwill and an intangible
asset with indefinite useful life (Continued)

BB R AR A F R A E R R E S ()

As set out in notes 14 and 15 to the consolidated financial statements,
the carrying amounts of goodwill and the intangible asset with
indefinite useful life are US$74,941,000 and US$31,777,000,
respectively, at 31 December 2018.

WMERE B HARM T 14 R 15FFE - BELKAERRAIEAFHELEE
RZEBE-NF+ZA=+—BHEEESD H /A74941,000% 7T &
31,777,000 7T °

The management of the Group determined that there was no
impairment in the CGU containing goodwill and the intangible asset
with indefinite useful life during the year ended 31 December 2018.
EEEERERTE #E_Z—\FT_A=1t—RHLFERNEHE
NABRAEAFHBELVEENRCEE S REE -

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

B 2B S

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

BAWETNNEERRETSEE

Involving our internal valuation expert to
evaluate the appropriateness of the
valuation methodology and the
reasonableness of the discount rate
used by management by performing re-
calculations based on market data and
certain company specific parameters;
BB RME AR EERZEB AT IS
BRAETRARBELHAERMEN
B ERERANKETEZRREE
FUMRERREE

Obtain the sensitivity analysis performed
by management and assessing the
extent of impact on the value in use;
and
BEEEREETOERE SN T (4Y
EREENTERE &

Evaluating the historical accuracy of the
forecasted cash flows by comparing
them to actual results in the current
year.
RBRKKEARSREERNFEERE
SETHEFH L B E LR -
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Key audit matter

BRETEE

Assessment of the net realisable value of inventories

e FE R TR B FE

We identified the assessment of the net realisable value of inventories
as a key audit matter due to the significance of the balance to the
consolidated statement of financial position as a whole and the
management judgment involved in the determination of the net
realisable value.

BMEBRAFENAZRFETHABARENFIE  RAREHRER
BHMBERARBEEBNEELUREECAIZRFEBERALIRNE
BEHBNEEN -

As disclosed in notes 4 and 18 to the consolidated financial
statements, inventories are carried at US$277,807,000, which
represent approximately 30% and 15% of the Group’s current assets
and total assets at 31 December 2018, respectively. An expense of
US$9,293,000 was recognised in profit or loss to write down the cost
of inventories to their net realisable values during the year ended 31
December 2018.

WMEREMBEREMF4RISAER  R=2E—\F+=-_A=1T—0H"
FEPA277,807,000 € TARR - DRlth ERERBEEREELEN
30% K% 15% - HE-T—N\F+_A=+—HIFE ' 9,293,000% T
BRI RIERER  MRTERAZE A ZIRFE -

As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements, the
management identified slow-moving and obsolete inventories based
on the aged analysis of inventory and recent or subsequent usages/
sales and determined the write-down of inventories based on latest
selling prices and market conditions.

WS B MEMTAMEE  EEERBEERRNIARF I HE
‘RS HE  BRBEERERE  UYRBSRHEERTAEER
& HIMOR ©

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

BAWETNNEERRETSEE

Our procedures in relation to the assessment
of the net realisable value of inventories
included:
BMERATENAERFETENETIETE
7=

o Obtaining an understanding of the
management’s process in identifying
slow-moving and obsolete inventories
and determining the net realisable value
of inventories;
THREBBINFHMRETEARE
EFEH A 2EFENBIE

o Engaging our internal IT specialists to
test the accuracy of the inventories
aging list in the system generated report
and assessing whether slow-moving
and obsolete inventories were properly
identified after taking into account
subsequent sales of finished goods and
subsequent usage and consumption of
raw materials and work in progress;
ZEEMOABITERHEZREN RS
REFERRZENERMTETAR -
WA HH MR EFE R R ET REX
mE &S A RRME R ERmE R
B ROBEREE R ERT

° Comparing the actual selling prices of
finished goods subsequent to year end,
on a sample basis, to their carrying
amounts to check whether the finished
goods are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value; and
NHEZR K mRNFEFRENEREE
HEHRAEETHER  REEKERE
RPN A S IR E R A EREE SR
K

° Assessing the historical accuracy of the
write-down of inventories to evaluate
the appropriateness of the basis used
by management in the current year.
ST S MR 03B E R - L SFAE
BERAFERANEERTHEE -



OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included
in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with IFRSs and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
BB AN RS
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
BB EN RS

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with our agreed terms of engagement and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
BB AN RS
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
BB EN RS

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Tse Fung Chun.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

13 March 2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
SAERmRHEMEEmIAX

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZE—-ZT— \F+_-_A=+—HIFE

{ 2018 2017
| —B-NF| —T—+t&
Notes |  US$'000 US$'000
B 5E FEx FET
Revenue Uz 5 2,495,966 2,177,994
Cost of sales HER A (2,026,244)! (1,735,583
]
Gross profit ESVY 469,722 442,411
Other income, gains or losses HaA - WasskEsia ! 15,164 9,297
Selling and distribution expenses PHE RS EMY [ (42,836) (39,710)
Administrative and other expenses TR R HARR S (255,814) (218,393)
Finance costs [ELEE DN (17,859) (16,565)
Share of results of an associate h—HEE QR EE 1,623 (2,669)
]
Profit before tax B 5 AT A 6 170,000 | 174,371
Income tax expense FTiSHi 2 8 (20,808) (25,854)
I
Profit for the year F 1A 5 F) ! 149,192 148,517
Other comprehensive (expense) income  Hfh2HE (B) LA
Item that may be reclassified HiEnEZ 2 EmmEE
subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange difference arising on translation of A& G4 S EE £ A IE 1, Z 58 |
foreign operations (23,266) 14,070
I
Items that will not be reclassified AETEEEN D EZ Bl |
subsequently to profit or loss: HA -
Remeasurement of defined benefit liabilities EHitETmEF G E (178) 5,265
Deferred tax expense arising on FEER A GEE AN IELRIE
defined benefit liabilities 53 (105) (1,027)
Surplus on revaluation of properties MEEHER 6,582 | 8,636
Deferred tax expense arising on revaluation ¥ EEEANELEFRIEF S ]
of properties (1,416) (1,670)
|
4,883 11,204
Other comprehensive (expense) income FREMETE(FZ) WA
for the year (18,383) 25,274
I
Total comprehensive income for the year FRNEAEWALEE 130,809 : 173,791
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

e B E M2 EIRAK

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ—-Z— \F+_A=+—HILtFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —ET—tF
Note US$°000 US$'000
B 5E FEr FET
Profit for the year attributable to: AT ATEEFRET
Owners of the Company PIN/NEIEZ SN 149,192 148,429
Non-controlling interests JEPE R RE RS _ 88
149,192 148,517
Total comprehensive income for the year ATATEEZEEALE :
attributable to:
Owners of the Company PIN/NETE 2 =N 130,809 173,703
Non-controlling interests FEPE R = - 88
130,809 173,791
Earnings per share for profit attributable to K2 T#EH A JE 15 % K &Y
the owners of the Company (US cents) FREAEF () 9
— basic — HK 5.24 6.20
— diluted —#E 5.23 6.20
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION @
e R AR L &

]

At 31 December 2018 R=—Z—\F+=-A=+—H :

e - [}

2018 | 2017 :

—E-N\F —tF '

Notes US$’000 US$'000 i

K FE5x FE£x :

| ]

[}

ASSETS aE i
Non-current assets EMBEE i
Property, plant and equipment ME - WEKEE 11 670,731 574,438 [}
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, TUEME - MR MR E S :
plant and equipment ME & 12 6,419 | 12,145 i
Prepaid lease payments B EERE 13 37,298 34,752 [}
Goodwill L 14 74,941 74,941 :
Intangible assets EREE 15 95,693 100,610 '
Interest in an associate R—EB 2 A NER 16 16,638 15,196 i
Loan receivables TEE 17 1,861 | 2,625 :
[}

903,581 814,707 [}

[}

[}

Current assets mENVEE )
Inventories By 18 277,807 249,372 :
Prepaid lease payments BRHEERE 13 960 879 0
Trade, bills and other receivables B S REKGIA - BUEE R |
H b fE U SR IB 19 337,220 337,597 )

Trade receivables at fair value through ?”"’“ﬁ@d‘)\,ﬁ\{ﬁiﬁqﬂlk | :
other comprehensive income KB 5 WK 20 10,697 - i
Amount due from an associate TEH&—F‘ﬁHﬁ%M“ 7T¢\IE 28 - 525 0
Amounts due from related companies FEUL FAES N B 38 29 733 1,228 :
Loan receivables FEUE R 17 674 696 i
Tax recoverable AT Ug Bl F 1A 5,954 | - i
Bank balances and cash IRITHEB RIS 21 302,326 416,721 :
[}

936,371 1,007,018 :

| [}

Total assets BERE 1,839,952 | 1,821,725 :
[}

[}

[}

]

[}

[}

]

[}

[}

]

[}

]

[}

[}

]

[}

]

]
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
kR SRR

At 31 December 2018 W-Z—N\F+=-A=+—H

, 2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
Notes US$°000 US$'000
B 5T FE7 FETT
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EERkAE
Capital and reserves AR A R 4
Share capital A% A 22 3,654 3,654
Reserves H1E 982,785 907,114
Total equity B 986,439 910,768
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Other payables Hib e~ ZE 23 4,190 8,933
Deferred taxation EERIA 24 32,685 31,254
Defined benefit liabilities TREEFAaE 25 - 265
Bank borrowings |ITEK 26 - 23,000
36,875 63,452
Current liabilities mEaE
Trade, bills and other payables B ENFIE BRNEER
H At fETRUIR 23 360,246 321,004
Amount due to an associate JEAS — R B & A B FR0E 28 3,607 -
Derivative financial instruments TTESRMTIEAE 27 7,462 -
Tax liabilities HIEARE 10,911 19,177
Bank borrowings RITHEK 26 | 434,412 507,324
816,638 847,505
Total equity and liabilities Em Mk BERE 1,839,952 | 1,821,725
7

FNEIQENRERBERER-_F-NF
ZATZAEESSHAERIRETIH - WHIA
TEERARE

The consolidated financial statements on pages 71 to 189 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 13
March 2019 and are signed on its behalf by:

LO Lok Fung Kenneth LO CHOY Yuk Ching Yvonne

LR BEIE
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EZF EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mERERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZE—-ZT— \F+_-_A=+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company
KNREEAERS
Property Share Non-
Share Share revaluation  Exchange Capital award Other  Retained controlling !
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits ~ Sub-total interests Total
NEEf RAED
& RHEE B EXGBE  ERER ERe  HMRFE  REEH Nt FERES @it
US§'000 Uss'000 Uss'000 Uss'000 Uss'000 Uss'000 Uss'000 Uss'000 Uss'000 Uss§'000 US$'000
T#n T#n T#n T#n T#n T#n TEn TEn En En En
At 1 January 2018 RZF-NE-F-R 3,654 499,808 63,096 (50,270) 9,903 m (5,262) 389,066 910,768 - 910,768
Profit for the year ERai - - - - - - - 149192 149,192 - 149192
Exchange difference arising on BEENSBELNELZE
translation of foreign operations - - - (23,266) - - - - (23,266) - (23,266)
Remeasurement of defined benefit iabiities E#73t & FEEHIAE = - - - - - - (178) (178) - (178)
Deferred tax expense arising on TERMEEEENELHIERS
defined benefit liabilities - - - - - - - (105) (105) - (105)
Surplus on revaluation of properties NSRS - - 6,582 - - - - - 6,582 - 6,582
Deferred tax expense arising on NEEREENETRERT
revaluation of properties - - (1416) - - - - - (1.416) - (1,416)
Total comprehensive income (expense) ~ ERZEMA (F) 48 !
for the year - - 5,166 (23,266) - - - 148,909 130,809 - 130,809
Recognition of equity-settled share-based ~ BEFALMEREEMEN BEREH
payment expense (note 30] BEGEIGER) - - - - - 3,940 - - 3,940 - 3,940
Viesting of shares in connection with SRHEBFEBERIRNER
Share Award Scheme B - 3,042 = = o (3,042) - - - - -
Transfer upon strike-off of subsidiaries  SIBHBARHEE - - - - - - 5,262 (5,262) = = =
Dividend paid note 10) B8 (3 10) - - - - - - - (59,078)  (59,078) - (59,078)
At 31 December 2018 R=F-\§+-A=1+-A 3,654 502,850 68,262 (73,536) 9,903 161 - 473,635 986,439 - 986,439 :
]
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
PN T
For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ—-Z— \F+_A=+—HILtFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

RNRERAER
Property Share Non-
Share Share  revaluation  Exchange Capital award QOther Retained controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Subtotal interests Total
NEER TRir 8

R RiEE BE  EXRE  AAEBR ERe RMRR  REE Pit o HaES 5t
US§000  USS000  USS000  USSO00  USS000  USPO0D  USPO0D  USSO00  USSO00  USSO00  USSO00
TRt TEar TRr TR TEar TR TR TAar TR TR TER

At 1 January 2017 R-E-+£-F-H 12 - 56,130 (64,340) 9,903 - - 303,853 305,558 267 308,229
Profitfor the year Efaf - - - - - - - 4849 148429 8 148517
Exchange difference arising on AERNERELNELEE

translation of foreign operations - - - 14,070 - - - - 14,070 - 14,070
Remeasurement of defined benefit iabiities E373 € FEERIEE - - - - - - - 5,265 5,265 - 5,265
Deferred tax expense arising on THEH AR NETHERY

defined benefit liabilties - - - - - - - (1,027) (1,027) - (1,027)
Surplus on revaluation of properties NEEHRH - - 8,636 - - - - - 8,636 - 8,636
Deferred tax expense arising on NEEFELHETHART

revaluation of properties - - (1,670) - - - - - (1,670 - (1,670
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ £R2ERAEE - - 6,966 14,070 - - - 152667 173,703 88 173791
Shares repurchased and cancelled BE LR (12 - - - - - - 12 - - -
Issue of shares pursuant to REEEEERTRR

re-denomination (note 22 (i) (Bzk 2200) 2954 - - - - - - (2,954) - - -

Issue of shares on the Hong Kong Public ~ EA AR E REE%E
Offering and the International Offering ([ 2R %& | BEARE -
(the "Global Offering”), including AfEERERRE
exercise of over-allotment option et of (41 EFTE/A 15,347,000 £70)

listing expenses of US$15,347,000) 683 496,111 - - - - - - 496,794 - 496,794
Issue of shares in connection with SREGHEBABRORNLS

Share Award Scheme B (note 22(i) (P 220i) 17 (17) - - - - - - - - -
Recognition of equity-settled share-based ~ BEAMEREZ R AERY

payment expense [note 30) 3R (H330) - - - - - 4487 - - 4487 - 4487
Visting of shares in connection with HRARBIEB ARORNER

Share Award Scheme B - 374 - - - (3714) - - - - -
Acquisition of non-controling interests o~ WEMB A TeEERiERS

subsidiaries - - - - - - ‘5,262) - ‘5,262) (1 ,838) ‘7,1 00)
Dividend paid to non-controling HHBATEERERRIRS

interests of subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - (921) (921)
Dividend paid note 10) BRRE(FE10) - - - - - - - (64512) (64512) - (64512)
At 31 December 2017 RZE-+E+-A=1+-8 3,604 499,808 63,09 (50,270) 9,903 3 (5,262) 389,066 910,768 - 910,768
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZE—-ZT— \F+_-_A=+—HIFE

:{ 2018 2017
I =B-N\F —E—+F
US$°000 US$'000
SEESm FET
i
OPERATING ACTIVITIES KESEE
Profit before tax BR 15 A1 A : 170,000 174,371
Adjustments for: AT SBEEL T i
Interest income B A (4,162) (644)
Finance costs BhE AR 17,859 | 16,565
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment Y - BB RREITE 67,860 ! 55,371
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments A HE RIS 1,004 939
Amortisation of intangible asset BB E R : 4,917 4,917
Net loss arising from changes in fair value/ PESRITIANFEES, |
derecognition of derivative financial RIEERTAE SR TA
instruments EANEIRFE 7,340 | 1,648
Loss on disposals of property, plant and HEWE - BEMREBEE !
equipment 164 811
Share of results of an associate DE— B R EEE ! (1,623) 2,669
Reversal of impairment of other receivables o JiE W R IE R (B B [ - (1,552)
Write-down of inventories FEMR 9,293 9,340
Impairment loss (reversal) recognised in respect  SE¥% - BB 2R (BE) !
of property, plant and equipment ERRREERE (4,732) 1,641
Reversal of allowance for trade receivables, net B 5 e GRIB B B 1 B F 58 s - (842)
Share-based payment expense LARR (7 BEMEM R ! 3,940 4,487
Operating cash flows before movements in LEESHBISESRERE
working capital 271,860 | 269,721
Increase in inventories FEEM (41,216) (38,663)
Increase in trade, bills and other receivables B EWFHIE - EREEN |
. fth i eSO 58 | (4,569) (44,161)
Increase in trade receivables at fair value through 122 FE(EE A H M2 EK AR
other comprehensive income B 5 FE W GRIAIE AN (10,697) -
Decrease (increase) in amount due from JE L — FR Bt 2 1 B R IER > ]
an associate (&50) 525 (525)
Decrease (increase) in amounts due from related  FEULEEEE A T 20E 55 2 (3200) |
companies | 493 (1,228)
Increase in trade, bills and other payables B EMNIIE  ENEER
E A FE A FRIALE AN 45,636 | 10,834
Increase (decrease) in amount due to an associate JE{f — B &2 B ZIEE I Gl d) 3,607 ! (2,235)
Decrease in defined benefit liabilities EFEREMBERD (449) (37)
|
Cash generated from operations KEFEHRE 265,190 193,706
Profits tax paid ERFEH (34,289) (20,903)
|
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETHFBRESEE 230,901 } 172,803
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mERSRER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HE—Z— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

2018 2017
—E-NF| —T—+tF
US$°000 US$'000
FEx FET
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BETEE
Payment for property, plant and equipment ME - WEMEREONR (171,757) (161,444)
New short-term bank deposit placed FILEEIRITIE K (38,234) -
Purchase of prepaid lease payments BEENHEERIEA (4,526) (1,911)
Withdrawal of short-term bank deposit REVE BRER 1 TR 3R 34,986 -
Interest received BRI B 4,162 644
Proceeds on disposal of property, HEWE  BEMREFTEHIE
plant and equipment 2,161 2,154
Loan receivables received BN E R 692 601
Receipts on settlement of derivative financial HEEOTE SR T B
instruments 108 -
Acquisition of subsidiaries g1 )=pNE) - (90,916)
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZBFFAREFEE (172,408) (250,872)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEED
Repayment of bank borrowings EIERITER (552,816) (613,858)
Dividend paid B E (59,078) (64,512)
Interest paid B A (17,859) (14,552)
New bank borrowings raised FEEMIRITER 458,314 670,042
Repayment to ultimate holding company EESF2 S NCIF -6 - (143,633)
Expenses on issue of shares BT X = (15,347)
Acquisition of non-controlling interests of U B M B A Ry FE I i 2
subsidiaries - (7,100)
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests of MM B A B FEE R IR AT AR B
subsidiaries - (921)
Repayment to related companies M BB N BB FR - (152)
Proceeds from issue of shares on Global Offering, & EREEEIEITAL D FTERTE -
including exercise of over-allotment option BIRTT{F R RE A AR = 512,141
Advance from ultimate holding company b 2y NCIE b - 25,001
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM FINANCING MEED (TR ABRESFE
ACTIVITIES (171,439 347,109

————————
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
meREMER
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HE—Z—N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

2018 2017
—E-NF| —T—+tF
Note US$'000 Us$'000
P FEx | FETT
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN RERBRESEBYORD)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS BN ' (112,946) 269,040
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE EREENTE
RATE CHANGES | 141 (445)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FYRERESEEY
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 412,696 | 144,101
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FEREESPRESEEY -
AT END OF THE YEAR, 5 !
represented by 299,891 412,696
Bank balances and cash RITHEB MRS . 302,326 416,721
Bank overdrafts RITIEXL 26 (2,435) (4,025)
299,891 412,696

——————————
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R a R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZE—-ZT— \F+_-_A=+—HIFE

1.

GENERAL

The Company was previously incorporated in Bermuda as an
exempted company with limited liability. Pursuant to a special
resolution passed in prior year, the Company discontinued in
Bermuda and registered by way of continuation in the Cayman
Islands as an exempted company with limited liability. Its parent
and ultimate holding company is Crystal Group Limited
(previously incorporated in Bermuda and redomiciled in the
Cayman Islands). The address of the registered office of the
Company is Ugland House, P.O. Box 309, Grand Cayman KY1-
1104, Cayman lIslands and the principal place of business of the
Company is 3/F, Crystal Industrial Building, 71 How Ming Street,
Kwun Tong, Hong Kong.

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 3 November 2017 (the “Listing Date").

The consolidated financial statements are presented in United
States dollars (“US$"), which is also the functional currency of
the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company and the
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries and associate are
set out in notes 38 and 16 respectively.

— &
RAREREBRESMKL RERE
EREBERR - RIBBEFERBH—
ERAAZESR  ARRBUBE AR ED
MIAFEFARHAEFEEMAER
PBERETAT - ARRNRIR&EKER
‘A 8] & Crystal Group Limited (JEBIfE B
FEIMKIEBMEREHE) - AR
A) & 5Tt 9 =5 58 th 4k & Ugland House,
P.O. Box 309, Grand Cayman KY1-1104,
Cayman lIslands * AR R &1 A 2 & 2
MEABEEBIELDRE7 RS IER
E=i-

ARARBROR-_T—tF+—HA=H
TETRBMDEFEBHARSMAERLN
Bl ([BERFR]) EMRE ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZE—

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”)

New and amendments to IFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following new and amendments to
IFRSs issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(“IASB") for the first time in the current year:

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
and the related Amendments

Foreign Currency Transactions and

Advance Consideration
Transfers of Investment Property

IFRIC 22

Amendments to
IAS 40

Amendments to As part of the Annual Improvements to
IAS 28 IFRS Standards 2014-2016 Cycle

Amendments to Classification and Measurement of
IFRS 2 Share-based Payment Transactions

Amendments to Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
IFRS 4 with IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts

Except as described below, the application of the new and
amendments to IFRSs in the current year has had no material
impact on the Group’s financial performance and position for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in the
Group's consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KR e B R MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HE—Z— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2.
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs") (continued)
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2.1 IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with 2.1 BRI B EERE15% &
Customers” F&a#Wa |
The Group has applied IFRS 15 for the first time in the REBRAFED R ERBRERE
current year. IFRS 15 superseded International Accounting R EER|FE 1558 o Bl B 75 3R
Standard (“IAS"”) 18 “Revenue”, IAS 11 “Construction S XERIE 55 EVS BB @ 51 & A
Contracts” and the related interpretations. F18R [k | B &R

TR [R2EEA 4] RIERRRE -

The Group recognises revenue from manufacturing and REBRKKEHEBZ TEPH
trading of garments at a point in time when the control of R B (BN REE ST B (X2
garments is transferred to the customers, being when the 1)) BREEKNKBERE S
garments have been shipped to the specific location Mz - REPEESMEESE RIS
(delivery). Transportation and other related activities that R AR ER R EMIEE S Y
occur before the customers obtain control of the related WREEBYES -

goods are considered as fulfilment activities.

IFRS 15 introduces a 5-step approach when recognising B PR B 7SR S ERIE 1558 3| AT

revenue: 127 SRR RR M

e Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer e ZF1H WMEH-—REFPNE

)

o Step 2: ldentify the performance obligations in the o F2H HEEAANEBENHET
contract e ZE3H: %EX%FT&

. Step 3: Determine the transaction price . FAW BRHEED

e Step4: Allocate the transaction price to the %@WE’UJ@%’U?E
performance obligations in the contract e E5F:REBETEHNEM

o Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity BF (3l mt Ik ) #EF2 U
satisfies a performance obligation =

Information about the Group’s performance obligations and A RN B A FE A B PR B 1S S s

the accounting policies resulting from the application of BIE 15 mMERNENETLE

IFRS 15 are disclosed in note 5 and 3 respectively. TR EFHNER D B L &

3R -

The Group has performed an assessment of the impact of AREE D FHH IR W PR I 153 5

the adoption of IFRS 15 and concluded that the revenue A5 EE  TRANKE

from manufacturing and trading of garments is recognised ERE SR TINGE R4 ksE

at a point in time when the control of the goods is %%%%ijs’jﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ - BIEAAR ¥5

transferred to the customers which is the same as the e ot R B 18R FE R UR 2R AT

revenue recognition used under IAS 18. Accordingly, the BEHER - Fit - &R B%ER

application of IFRS 15 does not have material financial HERBFISHFWEEBATFER

impact on the timing and amounts of revenue recognised RERERMBHEE LS EEK

in prior and current years. ERYEEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MBHmRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ—_Z— \F+_A=+—HItFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (continued)
2.2 IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

In the current year, the Group has applied IFRS 9 “Financial
Instruments” and the related consequential amendments
to other IFRSs. IFRS 9 introduces new requirements for (1)
the classification and measurement of financial assets and
financial liabilities, (2) expected credit losses (“ECL") for
financial assets and (3) general hedge accounting.

The Group has applied IFRS 9 in accordance with the
transition provisions set out in IFRS 9, i.e. applied the
classification and measurement requirements (including
impairment under ECL model) retrospectively to
instruments that have not been derecognised at 1 January
2018 (date of initial application) and has not applied the
requirements to instruments that have already been
derecognised at 1 January 2018. The difference between
carrying amounts at 31 December 2017 and the carrying
amounts at 1 January 2018 are recognised in the opening
retained profits and other components of equity, without
restating comparative information.

Accordingly, certain comparative information may not be
comparable as comparative information was prepared
under IAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement”.

Accounting policies resulting from application of IFRS 9 are
disclosed in note 3.

Classification and measurement of financial assets

The directors of the Company have reviewed and assessed
the Group's financial assets at 1 January 2018 based on the
facts and circumstances that existed at that date and
concluded that there was no material impact on the
Group's consolidated statement of financial position upon
adoption of IFRS 9.

Impairment under ECL model

At 1 January 2018, the directors of the Company have
reviewed and assessed the Group's existing financial
assets for impairment using reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort in
accordance with the requirements of IFRS 9 and have
concluded that no material financial impact exists, and
therefore no adjustment to the opening retained profits at 1
January 2018 has been recognised.

EEFH%)TETF%E#?%*&%EE
A ([ BIBR B #3552

& \ﬂgn]- (%)

22 @/ﬁ?—gnjﬁﬁ EAIFEIFE 2

||P

ATA |

RAFER - AEBEE R B
BELREOR[SRMTA| Y
HAth BB 1 15 5 A E 0 B
MREER] - BB HmEERIF
ol EERNEREERERE
BONDBENFTE  QERMEENT
HEEER(AMGFEEBR] &

—RRET S RIBOITRE ©

AEECREEBRMBREERSE
O 5% BT #8155 B R B R B 7% ¥
EEAEIR - MEN T —\F
—A—B(BXERBHE)EARELE
RN TEENEADBELER
E(BEEEREEBRENX T AR
B) MEAR_FT—-NF—A—
HERLIBANTAEREBR
Ee-R-_ZE—+F+-_HA=+—H
MEEAEENR -_T—-N\F—A—H
MBREE < AR Z5 - REIORE
i RS E By R BA
EIILLBER

R EE M TR R B & 5t 2R
EIR M TH : ERNTE]
e Bl BT HREN A EE
ERELE -

H e MBI M 1 5 RIS 957 8
BT BEREH M EIWE -

ERMEENDERTE
ARRBFERER-F—N\F—
A-BHERBFENFERIBREM
FeHEASRENZ AN ERMEE -
YR BRABRS B REEF
SR BB AR ERA M EARERE
RERFTE -

AHEESEBREX THRE

RZZE-—N\F—H—H ' ARAE
FERBBR B REENE IR
WE - FRABANHBAZHANKT
{ERNAI1S M A IR Al Se B KL R K 5T
1$$Eliﬁﬁ§ﬁﬂ‘1§§ﬁ SRE
WTRBTEEFEEMNERVER
2 HEmrEg —T—-N\F—H—
HEAIR B R A AL R

.------------------------------------------------------\

N e - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - a -



S

(=)

,------------------------------------------

’-------------------------------------------------------

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A ISR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HE—Z— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not
yet effective

The Group has not applied early the following new and
amendments to IFRSs and interpretations that have been issued
but are not yet effective:

IFRS 16 Leases'

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts®

IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments’

Amendments to Definition of a Business*
IFRS 3

Amendments to Prepayment Features with Negative
IFRS 9 Compensation’

Amendments to Sale or Contribution of Assets between
IFRS 10 and an Investor and its Associate or
IAS 28 Joint Venture?

Amendments to Definition of Material®
IAS 1 and IAS 8

Amendments to Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement’
IAS 19

Amendments to Long-term Interests in Associates and
IAS 28 Joint Ventures'

Amendments to Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards
IFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle’

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined
8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021
4 Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for which the

acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual period
beginning on or after 1 January 2020
5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020

Except for the new IFRS mentioned below, the directors of the
Company anticipate that the application of all other new and
amendments to IFRSs will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MBHmRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HE—Z—N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (continued)

IFRS 16 “Leases”

IFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the identification
of lease arrangements and accounting treatments for both
lessors and lessees. IFRS 16 will supersede IAS 17 “Leases”
and the related interpretations when it becomes effective.

IFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the basis of
whether an identified asset is controlled by a customer.

Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases are removed
for lessee accounting, and are replaced by a model where a right-
of-use asset and a corresponding liability have to be recognised
for all leases by lessees, except for short-term leases and leases
of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions)
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted
for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The lease liability is
initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that
are not paid at that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is
adjusted for interest and lease payments, as well as the impact
of lease modifications, amongst others. For the classification of
cash flows, the Group currently presents upfront prepaid lease
payments as investing cash flows in relation to leasehold lands
for own use while other operating lease payments are presented
as operating cash flows. Under IFRS 16, lease payments in
relation to lease liability will be allocated between a principal and
an interest portion which will be presented as financing cash
flows except for the short-term lease payments, payments for
leases of low value assets and variable lease payments not
included in the measurement of the lease liability within
operating cash flows.

Under IAS 17, the Group has already recognised the prepaid
lease payments for leasehold lands where the Group is a lessee.
The application of IFRS 16 may result in potential changes in
classification of these assets depending on whether the Group
presents right-of-use assets separately or within the same line
item at which the corresponding underlying assets would be
presented if they were owned.

2.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KR e B R MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HE—Z— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2.
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs") (continued)
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IFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued) B BR B 7 R & ,\U% 1655 [HE |
(&)
Other than certain requirements which are also applicable to the MR EANERANS THREIN
lessor, IFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor PREF SR 2ERIEE 16 58 A B Bl ﬁﬁll‘?’%
accounting requirements in IAS 17, and continues to require a EHENEI7TROEAASHEIER
lessor to classify a lease either as an operating lease or a finance T WHEBERHAABHESEAK
lease. EHERMEME -
Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by IFRS 16. AN - BIFR B A RS YER S 16 58 Bk E
HEFEEE -
At 31 December 2018, the Group has non-cancellable operating R-ZZE—-NE+-A=+—8 " WA=
lease commitments of approximately US$27,382,000 as SAFTHE  AEEM AT RECERE
disclosed in note 34 of which US$27,137,000 had original lease A ¥E 4 B27,382,000% v B A
terms over 1 year. A preliminary assessment indicates that these 27,137,000 T RIS HARR BB 1 4F o
arrangements will meet the definition of a lease upon application RIERBRE SR EER]IE 165812 © )
of IFRS 16, and hence the Group will recognise a right-of-use A HBRZELTHBETAHENTE
asset and a corresponding liability in respect of all these leases E Rt NEBBBAEAEZSHER
unless they qualify for classification as low value or short-term REAREENBEEE  HEHEEE
leases. S HMEE D EERIN
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MBHmRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ—_Z— \F+_A=+—HItFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (continued)

IFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

In addition, the Group currently considers refundable rental
deposits paid of US$3,964,000 as rights and obligations under
leases to which IAS 17 applies. Based on the definition of lease
payments under IFRS 16, such deposits are not payments
relating to the right to use the underlying assets; accordingly, the
carrying amounts of such deposits may be adjusted to amortised
cost. Adjustments of refundable rental deposits paid would be
considered as additional lease payments and included in the
carrying amount of right-of-use assets.

The application of new requirements may result in changes in
measurement, presentation and disclosure as indicated above.
The Group intends to elect the practical expedient to apply IFRS
16 to contracts that were previously identified as leases applying
IAS 17 and not apply this standard to contracts that were not
previously identified as containing a lease applying IAS 17.
Therefore, the Group will not reassess whether the contracts
are, or contain a lease which already existed prior to the date of
initial application. Furthermore, the Group intends to elect the
modified retrospective approach for the application of IFRS 16 as
lessee and will recognise the cumulative effect of initial
application to opening retained profits without restating
comparative information.

2.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EEFITEER
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The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain properties and financial
instruments that are measured at revalued amounts or fair values
at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would
take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or
liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement
and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-
based payment transactions that are within the scope of IFRS 2
“Share-based Payment”, leasing transactions that are within the
scope of IAS 17, and measurements that have some similarities
to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in
IAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in IAS 36 “Impairment of
Assets”.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZE—

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

o has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Company reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Company loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Company gains control
until the date when the Company ceases to control the
subsidiary.
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(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries
is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into
line with the Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately
from the Group's equity therein, which represent present
ownership interests entitling their holders to a proportionate
share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing subsidiaries
Changes in the Group's interests in subsidiaries that do not result
in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are accounted
for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s
relevant components of equity including reserves and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiaries.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if any)
are derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
and is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of
the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of
any retained interest and (i) the carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary attributable to
the owners of the Company. All amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or
loss or transferred to another category of equity as specified/
permitted by applicable IFRSs). The fair value of any investment
retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost
is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent
accounting under IFRS 9/IAS 39, when applicable, as the cost on
initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a joint
venture.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MBHmRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HE—Z—N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost
established at the date of the acquisition of the business less
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the relevant cash-generating units (“CGUs") or groups of
CGU that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination, which represents the lowest level at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes and is
not larger than an operating segment.

A CGU or groups of CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently when there is
indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on
an acquisition in a reporting period, the CGU or groups of CGU to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable amount
is less than the carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill and then to
the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount
of each asset in the unit or groups of CGU.

On disposal of the relevant CGU or any of the CGU within the
groups of CGU, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in
the determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.
When the Group disposes of an operation within the CGU or a
CGU within the groups of CGU, the amount of goodwill disposed
of is measured on the basis of the relative values of the operation
or the CGU disposed of and the portion of the CGU or the groups
of CGU retained.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Investment in an associate

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not
control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of an associate are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using the
equity method of accounting. The financial statements of an
associate used for equity accounting purposes are prepared
using accounting policies that are uniform with those of the
Group for like transactions and events in similar circumstances.
Under the equity method, investment in an associate is initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position at
cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's share of
the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the
associate. Changes in net assets of the associate other than
profit or loss and other comprehensive income are not accounted
for unless such changes resulted in changes in ownership
interest held by the Group. When the Group's share of losses of
an associate equals or exceeds its interest in that associate
(which includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form
part of the Group’s net investment in the associate), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional
losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee becomes an
associate. On acquisition of the investment in an associate, any
excess of the cost of the investment over the Group’s share of
the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the
carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
over the cost of the investment, after reassessment, is
recognised immediately in profit or loss in the period in which
the investment is acquired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MBHmRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HE—Z—N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Investment in an associate (Continued)

The Group assesses whether there is objective evidence that the
interest in an associate may be impaired. When any objective
evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with
IAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount
(higher of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with
its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms part
of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recognised in accordance with IAS 36 to the
extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an
associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest
in the investee with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. When the Group retains an interest in the former
associate and the retained interest is a financial asset within the
scope of IFRS 9/IAS 39, the Group measures the retained
interest at fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded as
its fair value on initial recognition. The difference between the
carrying amount of the associate and the fair value of any
retained interest and any proceeds from disposal of the interest
in the associate is included in the determination of the gain or
loss on disposal of the associate. In addition, the Group accounts
for all amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that associate on the same basis as would
be required if that associate had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income by that associate
would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the
related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss
from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment)
upon disposal/partial disposal of the relevant associate.

The Group continues to use the equity method when an
investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or an investment in a joint venture becomes an
investment in an associate. There is no remeasurement to fair
value upon such changes in ownership interests.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Investment in an associate (Continued)

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate
but the Group continues to use the equity method, the Group
reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss that
had previously been recognised in other comprehensive income
relating to that reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss
would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the
related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group,
profits and losses resulting from the transactions with the
associate are recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements only to the extent of interest in the associate that are
not related to the Group.

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of IFRS 15)

Under IFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the
goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a
bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct
goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over
time by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of the relevant performance obligation if one of the following
criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group's performance as the Group
performs;

° the Group’s performance creates and enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

° the Group's performance does not create an asset with an
alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to
date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of IFRS 15) (Continued)

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration in
exchange for goods or services that the Group has transferred to
a customer that is not yet unconditional. It is assessed for
impairment in accordance with IFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable
represents the Group’s unconditional right to consideration, i.e.
only the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due)
from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to a contract are
accounted for and presented on a net basis.

Revenue from sales of garments

The Group sells garments directly to its customers and revenue
is recognised when control of the goods has transferred, being
when the goods have been shipped to the specific location
(delivery). Transportation and other related activities that occur
before the customers obtain control of the related goods are
considered as fulfilment activities. Following delivery, the
customer has full discretion over the manner of distribution and
price to sell the goods, has the primary responsibility when on-
selling the goods and bears the risks of obsolescence and loss in
relation to the goods. The Group allows credit periods ranging
from 15 to 120 days to its trade customers.

Revenue recognition (prior to 1 January 2018)

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated
customer returns, rebates and sales related tax.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be
reliably measured; when it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when specific criteria have
been met for each of the Group's activities, as described below.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods
are delivered and title has passed.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. BEESTTHE®
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (prior to 1 January 2018) UWBHERA(R=—ZF—-—NF—H—
(Continued) H A7) (%)

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the
principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable,
which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including land and buildings held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes (other than construction in progress) are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
or fair value less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Any revaluation increase arising on the revaluation of land and
buildings is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in property revaluation reserve, except to the extent
that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset
previously recognised in profit or loss, in which case the increase
is credited to profit or loss to the extent of the deficit previously
charged. A decrease in net carrying amount arising on revaluation
of an asset is recognised in profit or loss to the extent that it
exceeds the balance, if any, on the property revaluation reserve
relating to a previous revaluation of that asset. On the
subsequent sale or retirement of a revalued asset, the
attributable revaluation surplus is transferred to retained profits.

Depreciation is recognised to write off the cost or revalued
amounts of items of property, plant and equipment (other than
construction in progress and freehold land) less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight line
method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of the reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for
on a prospective basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or
administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised
impairment loss. Costs include professional fees and, for
qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with
the Group's accounting policy. Such properties are classified to
the appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of
these assets, on the same basis as other property assets,
commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised
in profit or loss.

Prepaid lease payments

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance or
an operating lease separately based on the assessment as to
whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been transferred to the Group,
unless it is clear that both elements are operating leases in which
case the entire lease is classified as an operating lease.
Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including any lump-
sum upfront payments) are allocated between the land and the
building elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the
leasehold interests in the land element and building element of
the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the
consolidated statement of financial position and is amortised
over the lease terms on a straight line basis. When the lease
payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land and
building elements, the entire lease is generally classified as a
finance lease and accounted for as property, plant and
equipment.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in
the period in which it is incurred. Expenditure on development
activities is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is
incurred when there is no internally-generated intangible asset
arising from development activities.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
recognised separately from goodwill and are initially recognised
at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as
their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired in a
business combination with finite useful lives are reported at cost
less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment
losses, on the same basis as intangible assets that are acquired
separately. Alternatively, intangible assets acquired in a business
combination with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less
any subsequent accumulated impairment losses (see the
accounting policy in respect of impairment losses on tangible and
intangible assets below).

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains and losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in
profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets other than goodwill (see the accounting
policy in respect of goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with finite
useful lives to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss (if any).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets other than goodwill (see the accounting
policy in respect of goodwiill above) (Continued)

The recoverable amount of tangible and intangible assets are
estimated individually, when it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the CGU to which the asset belongs.
When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual CGUs,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of CGUs for
which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets
not yet available for use are tested for impairment at least
annually, and whenever there is an indication that they may be
impaired.

The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset (or a CGU) for which the estimates of future cash flows
have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is estimated to
be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. In allocating
the impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and
then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit. The carrying amount of an
asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs
of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and
zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise
have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other
assets of the unit. An impairment loss is recognised immediately
in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued
amount under another standard, in which case the impairment
loss is treated as a revaluation decrease under that standard.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets other than goodwill (see the accounting
policy in respect of goodwiill above) (Continued)
Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or CGU) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset (or CGU) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount under another
standard, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is
treated as a revaluation increase under that standard.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost of inventories is determined on the weighted average
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and
costs necessary to make the sale.

Leasing

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments, including the cost of acquiring land
held under operating leases, are recognised as an expense on a
straight line basis over the lease terms, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.
Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are recognised
as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability.
The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction
of rental expense on a straight line basis, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the
rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At
the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the
date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise except for
exchange differences on monetary items receivable from or
payable to a foreign operation of which settlement is neither
planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming part of the net
investment in the foreign operation), which are recognised
initially in other comprehensive income and reclassified from
equity to profit or loss on disposal or partial disposal of the
Group's interests.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. US$) using exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period. Income and expenses items are translated at
the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during that period, in which case the
exchange rates at the dates of the transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of exchange reserve.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in an associate that
includes a foreign operation of which the retained interest
becomes financial assets), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation attributable to
the owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation that does not result in the Group
losing control over the subsidiary, the proportionate share of
accumulated exchange differences are re-attributed to non-
controlling interests and are not recognised in profit or loss. For
all other partial disposals (i.e. partial disposal of associates that
do not result in the Group losing significant influence), the
proportionate share of the accumulated exchange differences is
reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed through acquisition of a foreign
operation are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the
end of the reporting period. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from “profit before tax” as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income because of items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
interest in an associate, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments and interest are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the assets to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its
current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except
when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting
for the business combination.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefit costs and termination benefits
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans, state-
managed retirement benefit schemes and the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme are recognised as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to have the
contributions made.

For the defined benefit plan, the cost of providing benefits is
determined using the projected unit credit method, with actuarial
valuations being carried out at the end of the annual reporting
period.

Defined benefit costs are categorised as service cost (including
current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and
losses on curtailments and settlements), net interest expense or
income and remeasurement.

The Group presents the first two components of defined benefit
costs in profit or loss. Curtailment gains and losses are accounted
for as past service costs. Past service cost is the change in the
present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from a
plan amendment or curtailment and is recognised in profit or loss
in the period of a plan amendment. Net interest is calculated by
applying the discount rate at the beginning of the period to the
net defined benefit liability or asset.

3.

BEESTHER®

CEAIIEN

Wi - Bt EREREE (RTERE
ERESAREREREREENEE)
HEERIGENERRAT G ALETEEN
A BEEEEXRE LA RERERSE

BZERBRABEREEREERRKR
BERMBBRERA - HERAEERL
B KA AR AR AR ©

P A E AL R AT R E W HIRERE

AR ©

BIKFFEERBEBER

A R R KRR 8 - B E M
RRREFNET 8 MR b ATE R BI1E L
MR R B B R R 75 T = A SR
HERRFHX -

SLERERAIGTEIMF - 'R N B A A
BT EMEMEAEE  YRFERS
HIRETTIRE S -

TERBBMAAD BRI A (B35 E IR
B BERBERA - ARAER N
Hoylam RER) - FH SR HBA R
EHEE -

AEBRIBR 2T E ML £ #E N K
AR o HEm U E K B R ARRIE BT RS
AR o B RF A ThET BUE 7T S 4R R
BN TRBMNEEREZE K53
EHERT IR AR R « F A B R
RENEREZERENAEREEF
BFTHE -
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Retirement benefit costs and termination benefits
(Continued)

Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, and the
return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest
on the net defined benefit liabilities/assets), is reflected
immediately in the consolidated statement of financial position
with a charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive
income in the period in which they occur. Remeasurement
recognised in other comprehensive income is reflected
immediately in retained profits and will not be reclassified to
profit or loss.

The retirement benefit obligation or asset recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position represents the actual
deficit or surplus in the Group's defined benefit plan. Any such
surplus is limited to the present value of any economic benefits
available in the form of refunds or reductions in future
contributions to the plans.

Termination benefits result from either the Group's decision to
terminate the employment or an employee’s decision to accept
the Group's offer of benefits in exchange for termination of
employment. The Group recognises a liability for benefits at the
earlier of when the Group entity can no longer withdraw the offer
of the termination benefit and when it recognises any related
restructuring costs.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as and
when employees render the services. All short-term employee
benefits are recognised as an expense unless another IFRS
requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an
asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such
as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after
deducting any amount already paid.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Share-based payment arrangements

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the
equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled
share-based payments is expensed to profit or loss on a straight
line basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate
of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a
corresponding increase in equity (capital reserve or share award
reserve). At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to vest
based on assessment of all relevant non-market vesting
conditions. The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if
any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative
expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding
adjustment to the share award reserve.

For grants of shares that vest immediately at the date of grant,
the fair value of the awarded shares is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

When the awarded shares vest and are transferred to the
awardees, the amount previously recognised in the share award
reserve will be transferred to share premium.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established
by regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts with
customers, which are initially measured in accordance with IFRS
15 since 1 January 2018. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HE—Z—N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments (including
all fees paid or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset or financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (upon application of IFRS 9 in accordance with
transitions in note 2)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income ("FVTOCI"):

° the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL").
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (upon application of IFRS 9 in accordance with
transitions in note 2) (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost and receivables subsequently measured at
FVTOCI. Interest income is calculated by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired (see below). For
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on
the credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that
the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate
to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following the
determination that the asset is no longer credit-impaired.

Receivables classified as at FVTOCI

Subsequent changes in the carrying amounts for
receivables classified as at FVTOCI as a result of interest
income calculated using the effective interest method are
recognised in profit or loss. All other changes in the carrying
amount of these receivables are recognised in other
comprehensive income (“OCI"”). Impairment allowances
are recognised in profit or loss with corresponding
adjustment to OCI without reducing the carrying amounts
of these receivables. The amounts that are recognised in
profit or loss are the same as the amounts that would have
been recognised in profit or loss if these receivables had
been measured at amortised cost. When these receivables
are derecognised, the cumulative gains or losses previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified
to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MBHmRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HE—Z—N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial

assets (upon application of IFRS 9 in accordance with

transitions in note 2) (Continued)

(i) Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated at
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the
end of the reporting period, with any fair value gains or
losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss incorporates any dividend or
interest earned on the financial asset and is included in the
"“other income, gains or losses” line item.

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of IFRS 9 in
accordance with transitions in note 2)

The Group recognises a loss allowance under ECL on financial
assets which are subject to impairment under IFRS 9 (including
trade, bills and other receivables, trade receivables at FVTOCI,
loan receivables, amounts due from an associate/related
companies and bank balances). The amount of ECL is updated at
each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument.
In contrast, 12-months’ ECL (“12m ECL") represents the portion
of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events that
are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
Assessments are made based on the Group’s historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of both
the current conditions at the reporting date as well as the
forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables
without any significant financing component. The ECL on these
assets is assessed individually for debtors with significant
balances.

BEESTHER®

EET A

ETRMEE(H)

ETREEN S BREMNE (RRMFE2

HY 8 75 1% 3 JE I I PR B 755 2 2 ZE R 56 9

#%) (%)

(i) TAFEFABENEREE
PR E LB KA SIZ A FERTA
Hitp 2 ERARIEE R A FER
ARMEEBAGEEINERE
ERAVEFFABRTE -

BATEFABRSNEREEN R
SRR A FEE - WRBER
HEREA A FERENEE - RE
SERNRERERFERERS
BE EMEVEM RS RAE - A
FEATHEAMA - sk EiE | 18
T o

S EEE R (IR a2 H938 BAF S IE
BB R % 3 &5 B RIE 9 3%)
AEBERBREBRMHHRELRE
SETRRENTREE (BIRE BRI
B BWEREREMERGR - R
Bt AEMEZEKRARNE S ERHIA -
R ER - Ul — e A RRIA#
B RFIARIRITER) WIRBEREER
BRERRE BHEEBRESBERS
HEBHER - AR B AR AR
EERBRNES

KABHEEEBERENARE T ABRSF
HINB AP B Al REE O ST B
BHEEBE - BR - 12EA8EHEE
EE(M2EARMEEBR ) EFEHRN
HERHR1I2EARAEELENENS
HArEBM B O KATEHEERERE - &F
HREASEBEIEEBEELRET
WAR BB F R ER R - BREHEN
VA R 1 ¥l B HIEE AT AR e R SRR
SUTERI B RF AR T VB H FREE

AEE-ERTEEARELONES
EURIARERKATRREERR - %F
BENEHMEEBRDMAEERNGEHY
FE W BRFAETT (B B FF A -

.------------------------------------------------------\

N e - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - g -



,-------------------------------------------------------

S

(2)

,------------------------------------------------

> == CRYSTAL INTERNATIONAL GROUP LIMITED S4Bl AR AT mw e e e m o oo e oo m oo oo oo oo oo

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A ISR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HE—Z— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of IFRS 9 in
accordance with transitions in note 2) (Continued)

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance
equal to 12m ECL, unless there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, in which case the Group
recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime
ECL should be recognised is based on significant increases in the
likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial recognition.

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument at
the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument at the date of initial recognition. In
making this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without undue
cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account
when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

° significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit
spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

° existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

° an actual or expected significant adverse change in
the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of IFRS 9 in
accordance with transitions in note 2) (Continued)

(i

(ii)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit
risk on a financial asset has not increased significantly since
initial recognition if the financial asset is determined to have
low credit risk at the end of the reporting period. A financial
asset is determined to have low credit risk if (i) it has a low
risk of default, (ii) the borrower has a strong capacity to
meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the near term
and (iii) adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not necessarily,
reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual
cash flow obligations. The Group considers a financial asset
to have low credit risk when it has an internal or external
credit rating of ‘investment grade’ in accordance with
globally understood definitions.

The Group considers that default has occurred when the
instrument is more than 90 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information to demonstrate
that a more lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above assessment, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset is more
than 90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more lagging
default criterion is more appropriate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of IFRS 9 in
accordance with transitions in note 2) (Continued)

(iif)

(iv)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events of default that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have
occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes observable data about the following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s financial
difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider; or

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed in liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings. Financial assets written off may still be
subject to enforcement activities under the Group's
recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition
event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit
or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HE—Z—N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of IFRS 9 in

accordance with transitions in note 2) (Continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL
The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if
there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased
and probability-weighted amount that is determined with
the respective risks of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is estimated as the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is
credit impaired, in which case interest income is calculated
based on the amortised cost of the financial asset.

Except for trade receivables at FVTOCI, the Group
recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all
financial instruments by adjusting their carrying amounts,
with the exception of trade receivables where the
corresponding adjustment is recognised through a loss
allowance account. For trade receivables at FVTOCI, the
loss allowance is recognised in OCl and accumulated in the
financial instruments revaluation reserve without reducing
the carrying amount of these receivables.

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (before application of IFRS 9 on 1 January 2018)
Financial assets are classified into loans and receivables. The
classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial
assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition. All
regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the marketplace.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Loans and receivables (including trade, bills and other
receivables, amounts due from an associate/related companies,
loan receivables, and bank balances and cash) are recorded at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate, except for short-term receivables where the recognition of
interest would be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets (before application of IFRS 9
on 1 January 2018)

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the
end of the reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be
impaired when there is objective evidence that, as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial
assets have been affected.

For loans and receivables, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;

° breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial reorganisation.

Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables
could include the Group’'s past experience of collecting
payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments in the
portfolio past the average credit period, as well as observable
changes in national or local economic conditions that correlate
with default on receivables.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (before application of IFRS 9
on 1 January 2018) (Continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception
of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.
When a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent
that the carrying amount of the investment at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost
would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the
Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred
asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in the asset and
an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the
Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise
the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing
for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. BEEETHEw
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued) SETAE

Financial liabilities and equity cHBERER
Classification as debt or equity SEREESER

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residential
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised as the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities other than derivatives (including trade, bills and
other payables, amount due to an associate and bank borrowings)
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date when
derivative contracts are entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of the reporting period.
The resulting gain or loss is credited or charged to profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or have
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that the Group will be required to settle that obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end
of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash
flows (where the effect of the time value of money is material).

EHRBALARES ORENERE
REERRATANERSBASRE
s -

KEATA
BRARTERETMEHNGRERMERER
HEEDAFGESENAH - ARFE
HITNRATERZWAEEZRANRE
BBITRANEIER

BREBHERE SR EHEE
TETANIIMEREE(BEEZEN
R BNRBEREMEMRIEA B
—FRIB 2 A B FUR MARTT (7R BE 1R 2 1
BERMNZRRMIENAGE -

TELBTA
METEMSERTAETAANRTBEH
WATFERER BEAREHAREZER
FEEFE - TEENKRENEET
ABEFEBENRG -

KBRS RBERE
EREEAEEECORER - B
ERE AEETERLERSBE
oI EREBEEEEERE MR
O B S

R

M ANSEEFBERFAERG AR AHE
ERME MAREAIREABITZAE
WEER SEfbat 2 B XS - RIRER
e

ERSBRENSBENREREPIRET
BEREEMBERENRERTE I
REBEGETNRR L THBARESE
ERERBETREBEEGLAMFREN
BHER  ERHEAZSFHRIREN
REMWEERHEETYEELN) -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZE—

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year.

Impairment assessment of goodwill and
intangible assets

Customer relationships with finite useful lives are reviewed for
impairment when events or circumstances indicate the carrying
value may not be recoverable at the end of the reporting period.
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, there are no
indicators of impairment (including adverse changes to financial
performance such as profit margin, adverse changes to
continuing customer portfolios etc.) identified for customer
relationships at 31 December 2018.

Goodwill and brand name with an indefinite useful life are reviewed
for impairment annually, irrespective of whether there is any
indication that they may be impaired. Determining whether goodwvill
and intangible assets are impaired requires an estimation of the
recoverable amount of the CGU to which goodwill and intangible
assets have been allocated. The recoverable amount of the CGU at
the end of the reporting period is based on the higher of the fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use. The value in use
calculation requires the management of the Group to estimate the
future cash flows expected to arise from the CGU which includes
key assumptions for cash flow projections including yearly growth
rates of revenue, gross margin, discount rate and management’s
expectation of market conditions. Where the actual future cash
flows are less than expected, a material impairment loss may arise.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(Continued)

Impairment assessment of goodwill and
intangible assets (Continued)

The Group has not recognised an impairment loss during the year
since the recoverable amount of the CGU of Vista Corp Holdings
Limited (“Vista"), which includes goodwill and brand name,
exceeds its carrying amount.

The carrying amounts of goodwill and intangible assets are
US$74,941,000 and US$95,693,000 (2017: US$74,941,000 and
US$100,610,000), respectively, at 31 December 2018 (see notes
14 and 15).

Assessment of the net realisable value of
inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
values. The management of the Group is required to exercise
judgment in identifying slow-moving and obsolete inventories
and determine the write-down of inventories based on the latest
selling price and market conditions at the end of the year. The
identification of slow-moving and obsolete inventories is based
on the aged analysis of inventory and recent or subsequent
usage/sales. When the actual net realisable values are lower than
expectation, such difference will impact the carrying amounts of
inventories.

At 31 December 2018, the carrying amount of inventories is
US$277,807,000 (2017: US$249,372,000) (see note 18). During
the year ended 31 December 2018, an expense of US$9,293,000
(2017: US$9,340,000) was recognised in profit or loss to write
down the cost of inventories to their net realisable values.

Depreciation

The Group depreciates property, plant and equipment over their
estimated useful lives and after taking into account their
estimated residual values, using the straight line method. The
estimated useful lives reflect the estimates of the directors of
the Company of the periods based on the Group’s historical
experience with similar assets. The residual value reflects their
estimated amount that the Group would currently obtain from
disposal of the asset, after deducting the estimated costs of
disposal.

Details of depreciation policies are set out in note 11.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(Continued)

Fair value measurement of land and buildings
Certain of the Group’s land and buildings are measured at fair
value for financial reporting purposes. The directors of the
Company are responsible for determining the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs for fair value measurement.

In estimating the fair value of an asset, the Group uses market-
observable data to the extent it is available. Where Level 1 inputs
are not available, the Group engages third party qualified valuers
to perform the valuation. The directors of the Company work
closely with the qualified external valuers to establish the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the model.

The Group uses valuation technigues that include inputs that are
not based on observable market data to estimate the fair value of
properties. Note 11 provides detailed information about the
valuation techniques, inputs and key assumptions used in the
determination of fair value of the properties.

At 31 December 2018, the carrying amounts of the land and
buildings at valuation are approximately US$270,359,000 (2017:
US$257,773,000) (see note 11).

Estimated impairment of property, plant and
equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any. The directors
of the Company review their carrying amounts whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts
may not be recoverable at the end of the reporting period. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which an
asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use.

In determining whether an asset is impaired, the Group has to
exercise judgment and make estimation, particularly in assessing:
(1) whether an event has occurred or there are any indicators that
may affect the asset value; (2) whether, in case there is an
impairment indicator, the carrying value of an asset can be
supported by the recoverable amount, in the case of value in use,
the net present value of future cash flows which are estimated
based upon the continued use of the asset; and (3) the
appropriate key assumptions to be applied in estimating the
recoverable amounts including cash flow projections and an
appropriate discount rate.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(Continued)

Estimated impairment of property, plant and
equipment (Continued)

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, there was no
indicator of impairment (including obsolescence or physical
damage, low utilisation rate of property, plant and equipment
etc.) identified for the property, plant and equipment at the end
of the reporting period.

At 31 December 2018, the carrying amounts of property, plant
and equipment are approximately US$670,731,000 (2017:
US$574,438,000) (see note 11).

Assessment of the useful lives of intangible
assets

Intangible asset with a finite useful life

The intangible asset with a finite useful life of the Group
represents the customer relationship arising from the acquisition
of Vista which is amortised on a straight line basis over the
estimated useful life of the asset. The Group determines the
estimated useful life of the customer relationship on initial
recognition in order to determine the amount of amortisation
expense to be recorded during any reporting period. The useful
life of the customer relationship was determined with reference
to a number of factors, including the useful lives of similar
intangible assets in certain comparable transactions, historical
customer data, and management’s experience and industry
knowledge. The amortisation expense for future periods is
adjusted if there are significant changes from previous estimates.
The carrying amount of the customer relationship is
US$63,916,000 at 31 December 2018 (2017: US$68,833,000)
(see note 15).
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY 4.

(Continued)

Assessment of the useful lives of intangible
assets (Continued)

Intangible asset with an indefinite useful life

The intangible asset with an indefinite useful life of the Group
represents the brand name arising from the acquisition of Vista.
Management estimates the useful life of the brand name based
on the expected lifespan of the brand name. The brand name is
considered by the management of the Group as having an
indefinite useful life because it is expected to contribute to net
cash inflows to the Group indefinitely taking into account the
long history of Vista's operation.

The useful life of the brand name could change significantly as a
result of the regulatory and commercial environment. When the
actual useful life of the brand name due to the change of the
regulatory and commercial environment is different from its
estimated useful life, such difference will impact the amortisation
charges and the amounts of asset written down for future
periods. The carrying amount of the brand name is
US$31,777,000 (2017: US$31,777,000) at 31 December 2018
(see note 15).
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing and trading
of garments. All revenue generated by the Group is recognised
at a point in time when control of the goods has transferred to
the customers, being when the goods have been shipped to the
specific location (delivery).

Information reported to the executive directors of the Company,
being the chief operating decision maker (the “CODM"), for the
purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance focuses on types of products.

(i) Lifestyle wear

(i) Denim

(i) Intimate

(iv)  Sweater

(v)  Sportswear and outdoor apparel

(vi)  Others

These operating segments also represent the Group’s reportable
segments. No operating segments identified by CODM have

been aggregated in arriving at the reportable segments of the
Group.
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION W N D ERE R =)
(Continued)
Segment revenue and results o e Y E T
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results LT AREEZEEDEE DR
by operating segments: EEDT
Year ended 31 December 2018 BE-Z—-N\F+=-A=+—HLFE
Sportswear
and
| Lifestyle outdoor
| wear Denim Intimate Sweater apparel Others Total
EBfR
R AR 4R BERR X RFHMR Htr @it
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
Tx5 Tx5 Tin Tin TE TE TE
I
SEGMENTREVENUE 53k |
External sales HEPsHE 953,419 630,349 410,896 251,677 239,359 10266 2,495,966 |
Segment profit AERF 180,232 112,420 84,279 42,939 42,263 1,589 469,722
Other income, gains or ~ EMUTA  Ias
losses RER ! 15,164
Selling and distribution  $4& R A6 %
expenses (42,836)
Administrative and TRREMES
other expenses (255,814)
Finance costs AR K (17,859)
Share of results of HME—FEEE |
an associate NREE 1623 !
I
Profit before tax BRI 170,000 |
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ—-Z— \F+_A=+—HILtFE

(&)

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WERDHBER @)
(Continued)
Segment revenue and results (Continued) 7 &M as KR EAE (1)
Year ended 31 December 2017 BE_Z—+tH5+=-A=+—HLEEE
Sportswear
and
Lifestyle outdoor
wear Denim Intimate Sweater apparel Others Total
EER

PR R R BEAK X RPIMNR 2ty a5t
US$'000  US$000  US§'000  US§'000  US$'000  US$000  US$000
TETL TETL TET TET TET TET TET

SEGMENT REVENUE % &tk
External sales INERSHE 799,835 560,230 378,263 209,565 216,497 13,604 2,177,994

Segment profit DEbE R 163,154 110,350 84,026 42,967 41,404 10,510 442,41

Otherincome, gains or KA ~ Yuas sk

losses BB 9.297
Selling and distribution 4%} 73 #5515

expenses (39,710)
Administrative and THREMES

other expenses (218,393)
Finance costs BEKR (16,565)
Share of results of N [alis 4

an associate AREE (2,669)
Profit before tax BREATAT 174,371
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MBHmRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HE—Z—N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5.

(Continued)

Segment revenue and results (Continued)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same
as the Group's accounting policies described in note 3. Segment
profit represents the profit earned by each segment without
allocation of other income, gains or losses, selling and distribution
expenses, administrative and other expenses, finance costs, and
share of results of an associate. This is the measure reported to
the CODM of the Group for the purposes of resource allocation
and performance assessment.

No further analysis is presented for certain items included or
excluded in the measure of segment result as such information
is not regularly provided to the CODM.

Segment assets and liabilities
No analysis of segment assets or segment liabilities is presented
as such information is not regularly provided to the CODM.

Revenue from major customers
Revenue from customers individually contributing over 10% of
the Group's revenue is as follows:

W= Ko EBE R )

7 BB ak R E AR ()

RED G BUR RN 3T A
SESFBREMER - 2 EENIEEDE
ERDEEMBA - ek EE - HE
RpHEAX - ITREEMFES - BEMX
AR o6 — B L R R AR REAE
F o BTy RETEIRD E R RIRFFE N
AAKEEBELERRESRVE -

RO ERE EF A EIEIERD
ATHEYREHRERHER T EELERK
E AU E2IIZFERHE—LON -

THEERER

RO EBEERD MR AL AR TE HREMH
TERELERRE RALEB2IZFE
FHE DA

KEFEEFEF M
KEER AN RE S B REE 10% &Y
BEPeYmnT

Segment 1 2018 2017
2 —E-N\F —E—+F
US$000 US$'000
FER FE7T
Customer A Lifestyle wear, Denim, Intimate, Sweater and 920,579 717,182
Sportswear and outdoor apparel
(2017: Lifestyle wear, Intimate, Sweater and
Sportswear and outdoor apparel)
ZFA KERR ~ 7R - BEF AR - EXK
BEYREPINR(ZZE—EF : KER -
AR AK - EXRZEBREPINMR)
Customer B Lifestyle wear, Denim, Sweater and Sportswear N/A* 219,967
and outdoor apparel
%FB KERR - IR - ERIZESRKESINR TEA*
* The corresponding revenue from the customer did not contribute over 10% * Bz T N\F+_A=1+—HItFE K

of the total revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018.

BREFHERRET EAREEBAKEE
BiBIB10% °
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©

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION b, WmKRDEHER @
(Continued)
Geographical information Ith FE 5 4
Information about the Group's revenue is presented below by REBIRHEBNMIENE 2RO
geographical location based on port of discharge: BRanr
:‘ 2018 \: 2017
! —E-—N\F ! —E—+F
: US$000 : US$'000
: Fxx | FET
i
Asia Pacific (note i) AR (k) t 986,382 844,402
United States e i 942,360 803,089
Europe (note ii) BOM (B s i) ! 458,920 451,302
Other countries/regions HER = ! 108,304 79,201
|
: 2,495,966 2,177,994
Notes: BiRE -
(i) Asia Pacific primarily includes Japan, the People’'s Republic of China (the i TAMEFERFEERN PEARLNE
“PRC"), Hong Kong and South Korea. (TRE) - BB RER -
(ii) Europe primarily includes the United Kingdom (the “U.K."”), Belgium and (ii) BN EZRIEARE - L FIR REE -
Germany.
Information about the Group’s non-current assets other than loan REBIZEENMIBM B Z2RMNIERD
receivables is presented below by geographical location of the BE(BKEZRIN BERAT
assets:
2018 2017
—E-NF —E—tF
US$'000 US$'000
SFEEm FET
Asia Pacific (note i) A (M) 894,801 802,940
Europe (note ii) BOM (B s i) 6,919 9,142
: 901,720 812,082
Notes: BiaE -
(i) Asia Pacific primarily includes Bangladesh, Cambodia, Hong Kong, the PRC, (i) DAMETEBRELMNA REE - FS
Singapore, Sri Lanka and Vietnam. FE - N - BTERSR R o
(ii) Europe primarily includes the U.K.. (ii) BN EZ B FEHRE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE ISR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HE—Z—N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. BB
- 2018 ) 2017
| =B—-N\E| —ZT—+=F

US$°000 US$'000
FEx FET
Profit before tax has been arrived at B A R ToAEH Bk (READ i I
after charging (crediting): AN S IRBES
Directors’ emoluments (note 7) EEME (MFE7) 5,176 6,652
Other staff costs Hih 8 TR ! 564,867 | 480,045
Retirement benefit schemes contributions  HE 8 T #:R KR FI5T Sl 3=
for other staff 49,715 40,626
Total staff costs B TKA4%58 ' 619,758 527,323
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments B HEERIEE# 1,004 939
Auditors’ remuneration: % E AN
— audit services — BEZR% 1,077 1,299
— non-audit services — EBEZRE 522 1,706
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses &R AR X K917 &/ A 2,016,951 1,726,243
Write-down of inventories FEMR 9,293 9,340
Depreciation of property, plant and Y - BB NEREITE
equipment 67,860 55,371
Impairment loss (reversal) recognised in M - BB KRR (BE)
respect of property, plant and equipment TR HFEE B (4,732) 1,641
Amortisation of intangible asset (included — B EEZE (Gt AHEE N |
in selling and distribution expenses) ST 4917 4,917
Loss on disposals of property, plant and HEME - WERBHEHEE
equipment 164 811
Reversal of impairment of other receivables E ) fi& Uiz 5% 18 i (& # 3] ' - (1,552)
Reversal of allowance for trade receivables, & 5 FEU FIE R R R F 5
net - (842)
Net loss arising from changes in PTHES R TAEANFE
fair value/derecognition of derivative BE), IR IEERTTE !
financial instruments SRMITAEENEEFE 7,340 1,648
Interest income FLEMA (4,162) (644)
Net foreign exchange loss b 5 &5 18 55 3,172 7,312
Research and development expenses el | 40,639 ! 41,461
Listing expenses il - 7,901
Financial costs: BTG AAS
— imputed interest of consideration — BB AR EMARED
payable on acquisition of subsidiaries B 1 - 2,013
— interest on bank borrowings — RITERFIE ; 17,859 ! 14,552

\-------------------------------_----_----_----_----_----_----_----_-_.@,/



S

,--------------------------------------

’-------------------------------------------------------

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A ISR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HE—Z— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

©

7. DIRECTORS' AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS 7. EER{EEME

Directors’ emoluments EEMS
Details of the emoluments paid or payable to the directors of the RAREENFHENNATEESHNES
Company during the current year are as follows: HBEWT -
,"- Retirement
! Salaries  Performance- benefit
and based schemes |
Fees allowances bonuses  contributions Total
BHEA
I e HEREE BT ST @3t
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 !
i i S S S
(note iii)
(Btaiii)
]
For the year ended B2-E2-N\E+t-A=t-H
31 December 2018 LEE
Executive directors (note i): BITES (M) - :
Mr. LO Lok Fung Kenneth BERTE - 1,004 - - 1,004 !
Mrs. LO CHOY Yuk Ching Yvonne BETELT - 365 - - 365
Mr. LO Ching Leung Andrew (note iv) BEREE (M) - 956 478 23 1457
Mr. WONG Chi Fai TEERE - 583 247 32 862
Mr. WONG Sing Wah BREERE i - 9 423 42 1,256
Independent non-executive directors ote il B FEHTEE (i) -
Mr. GRIFFITHS Anthony Nigel Clifton GRIFFITHS Anthony
Nigel Clifton % & s 74 - - - 74
Mr. TSE Man Bun Benny EN 50 - - - 50 !
Mr. CHANG George Ka Ki RRELE 52 - - - 52
Mr. MAK Wing Sum Alvin Bkt 56 - - - 56
P 3699 1148 9 5176 |
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MBHmRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ—_Z— \F+_A=+—HItFE

7. DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS 7.

(Continued)

EEREEMNE W@

Directors’ emoluments (Continued) EEME (5
Retirement
Salaries  Performance- benefit
and based schemes
Fees allowances bonuses  contributions Total
RINER
we  HelkEn B HE5 Eeh
US§'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL
(note iii
(B i)
For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-E-tE+t-A-t+-BLEE
Executive directors note il Es () -
Mr. LO Lok Fung Kenneth BEELE - 919 - - 919
Mrs. LO CHOY Yuk Ching Yvonne BETERT - 367 - - 367
Mr. LO Ching Leung Andrew (note iv) BEREE(WEY) - 962 1,106 2 2,091
Mr. WONG Chi Fai TEBEE - 598 737 33 1,368
Mr. WONG Sing Wah BREERE - 744 965 40 1,749
Independent non-executive directors (note il B 3EE{7E 2 (i) -
Mr. GRIFFITHS Anthony Nigel Clifton GRIFFITHS Anthony
Nigel Clifton 7% & 58 - - - 58
Mr. TSE Man Bun Benny By 33 - - - 33
Mr. CHANG George Ka Ki RRERE 33 - - - 33
Mr. MAK Wing Sum Alvin BARELE 34 - - - 34
158 3,590 2,808 9% 6,652
Notes: BiRE -

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their services

in connection with the management of the affairs of the Company and the

Group.

for their services as directors of the Company.

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above were

The amounts represent performance-based bonuses paid to the directors to

reward their contributions to the Group, based on the performance of the

Group.

(iv) Mr. LO Ching Leung Andrew is also the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company during the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or
agreed to waive any remuneration during the years ended 31
December 2018 and 2017.

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

EXFARRATESHE AN RSEEAR

RAE A EEEEORY -

EXFREELIFRTEERE RN E

ERAABEEHNR -

BUREREAEDESTHARENTRMR

BB EE SN TRENERIELL -

HE-Z-\GFER-ZE—+tF+=-A=+—
BIEFE @ BIESSLETAERARDTIRES

B2 N\Ex-_Z—+F+=-H
—+—HLEFE BETATHSES
ER R B ETAF B -

N e - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - g -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ—-Z— \F+_A=+—HILtFE

1.

DIRECTORS" AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS 7.

(Continued)
Five highest paid individuals’ emoluments

The five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group

include 3 (2017: 4) directors of the Company. The emoluments of

EEREEMNE W@

BE

REHMA LB Z

AEELEESFMALBERNRAS
F2(ZE—LEF 4R)EF - LEERD

the five highest paid individuals are as follows: FHMA LB ST
{ 2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
US$'000 US$'000
FEx FETT
Salaries and allowances e MERh 3,531 3,589
Performance-based bonuses (note) ERIEAL (M) 1,828 3,268
Retirement benefit schemes contributions 3R /RIEFEHE|HE 2k 95 111
Share-based payment expense DAIRID B ERE AN B 194 -
5,648 6,968

Note: The amounts represent performance-based bonuses paid to the five highest
paid individuals to reward their contributions to the Group.

M BERREAZBREESFMALTHAE
BB B S S T IR S AR BIEAL
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7. DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS 7. EEREEME @)

&

(Continued)
Five highest paid individuals’ emoluments EEBREFMHALHBE (&)
(Continued)
Their emoluments were within the following bands (presented in BEHHESN T UATERE (LA([EBT) 2
Hong Kong dollars (“"HK$")): 5)) :
Number of directors Number of employees
EEAY EEAH
2018 \I 2017 2018 2017
—E2-N\F | T LF | ZF-N\F | ZT—+F
HK$6,500,001 to 6,500,001 T2
HK$7,000,000 7,000,000/ 7T - 1 1
HK$7,000,001 to 7,000,00178tE
HK$7,500,000 7,500,000/ 7T 1 = -
HK$7,500,001 to 7,500,001 TE
HK$8,000,000 8,000,000/ 7T - - -
HK$8,000,001 to 8,000,001 L=
HK$8,500,000 8,500,000/ 7T - 1 -
HK$9,500,001 to 9,500,001 L=
HK$10,000,000 10,000,0007% 7T - = -
HK$10,500,001 to 10,500,001 TE
HK$11,000,000 11,000,000/ 7T 1 - -
HK$11,000,001 to 11,000,0018LE
HK$11,500,000 11,500,000/ 7T - - -
HK$13,500,001 to 13,500,001 T2
HK$14,000,000 14,000,000/ 7T 1 = -
HK$16,000,001 to 16,000,001 TE
HK$16,500,000 16,500,00078 7T 1 - -
g 4 : 2 1
During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, no He_2—"N\FrZZTE—+F+=A4
emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the directors of —+t—HIEFE AKNEBHBERRNDG
the Company or the five highest paid individuals as an FRESHALZSEH AT L FEM

inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office. None of the directors of the Company has

e (ERWSIRENMAREELER
ARG E ) ZE KB E - &2

waived any emoluments during the years ended 31 December —E-N\FERZE—tF+_A=1+—
2018 and 2017. HIEFE - #EARRE S HE A

\----------------------------------------------
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HE—Z— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

8. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 8. FrSFifx
The income tax expense comprises: FriSEimZ 81 -
T 2018) 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
US$'000 US$'000
SFEEm FETT
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEBFEH
— current year — RFE 8,977 16,136
— overprovision in prior years —BEFEREREE ! (59) (5)
Overseas taxation YEINIE '
— current year — REFEE 12,129 | 10,795
— (over)underprovision in prior years — BAEFE GBEEE)
BETRE (822) 38
20,225 26,964
Deferred taxation (note 24) EERIE (5T 24) 583 (1,110)
i 20,808 25,854
On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed RZE—NE=A=-+—8  FBENE
The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill”) BB -_E—+EBB(EET) (B75)

PIE=(ERBIER]) - 5l ARSI
BHERHE - FOIERR-F—N\F=

which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The Bill ﬂ
was signed into law on 28 March 2018 and was gazetted on the

%)#

following day. Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the
first Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$"”) 2 million of profits of the
qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above
HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group entities
not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will
continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

The directors of the Company considered the amount involved
upon implementation of the two-tiered profits tax rates regime
as insignificant to the consolidated financial statements. Hong
Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profit for both years.

H +TNABEEXAEER INEAT
BEEW REBEMAGFEHESE &
B EEE 2 E 2,000,000 78 7T B F 45
1#8.25% BT R - M iEE 8 2,000,000
BITHEFIRIZ16.6% B REH -
HEMAHFEREFNENERER G
MG 5B 1R 16.5% M & — T RIEFR -

RRABEERR - MRS NEHRGE
BRI R eBHGRAMBEHRRME
WAREK - REMEFE - BEMEHR
Bt RGN 16.5% 51 & -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MBHmRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HE—Z—N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates
prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

All of the Group’s subsidiaries incorporated in Macau are
registered and regulated by the Decree Law No. 58/99/M
applicable to Macao offshore commercial activities and are
exempted from Macao Complementary Tax.

Certain subsidiaries incorporated in Cambodia are exempted
from tax on profit when they fulfilled certain requirements
pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in Cambodia.

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to profit
before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as follows:

RES A )
o T A A BB AR B R R
BITRIEE Y o

REEPRPIEM A S B9 FT A M B A A
HRBEBEBMBIINEEETHEANSE
B8QIMER A S Bt T HEE - Wi
BN BRI S TR o

RIBRIBEARBERLOER - RRIE
MM E THBARRERE TR
TE 1R AT IEFA S B M B AR AR AR o

FA-AEHAXEREEEREME
R AZR AR B RS FIE BR 0T -

:l 2018 2017
: —E-N\F ZE—+F
US$'000 : US$'000
TEx FET
Profit before tax B H5% B & ) 170,000 174,371
Tax at the Hong Kong Profits Tax BEBNEHIRE16.5%E
rate of 16.5% KR IR H 28,050 28,771
Tax effect of expenses not deductible TAHIHASTOH G & | ]
for tax purpose 5,294 | 3,547
Tax effect of income not taxable TRERTRBA RIS 52
for tax purpose (1,861) (1,601)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised KRR BERNRETE 785 773
Utilisation of tax losses previously BRI AR FER TR IEE B
not recognised (972) (1,216)
Utilisation of deductible temporary &) A S BT AR TERR B Al HUR :
differences not previously recognised =R = (192)
Effect of different tax rates of EEM AR LR
subsidiaries operating in NG CENE R
other jurisdictions of-Z 3,635 1,949
Effect of tax exemptions granted to B EEMaAEREZH
subsidiaries operating in M B A Rl FR IS ER
other jurisdictions 0} (13,242) (6,210)
(Overjunderprovision in prior years BEFE (BEEE) BBETe | (881) 33
| ]
Income tax expense for the year FRERAYS 20,808 i 25,854

Details of deferred taxation are set out in note 24.

(S p———

R IAN BRI 24
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For the year

ended 31 December 2018 HZE -~ N\F+_-_A=+—HILFE

Notes:

(i) The weighted average number of ordinary shares above has been arrived at
after deducting the third tranches (2017: second and third tranches) of award
shares that are not yet vested but held by the trustee of Share Award

Scheme B as set out in note 30.

(ii) The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of basic

earnings per share has been adjusted retrospectively for the year ended 31

December 2017 for the effect of the re-denomination issue described in

note 22.

GEE

(i)

(ii)

9. EARNINGS PER SHARE 9. BEREF
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share RANBHEAANELHSRER B SEF
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the TR A TN EUERTE -
following data:
P -
: 2018 : 2017
! —E-N\F I —E—+tF
US$'000 US$'000
TEx FET
Earnings: 2ZF
Profit for the year attributable to AR ESRARREE |
owners of the Company for BRI ARESE A
the purpose of calculating basic FEAG F R A
and diluted earnings per share 149,192 148,429
Number of shares: BREOEAE : ‘000 ‘000
! Fhz ! Fix
Weighted average number of ordinary AR E SR EARET &
shares for the purpose of TSEAT AN AE 19 2
calculating basic earnings (P& R ii)
per share (notes i and ii) : 2,845,168 2,392,728
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: JE7r# & T i@mARHI 2 - ! ]
— Share Award Scheme B — f&n #EENETEIB 6,013 611
— Over-allotment option — EBEAM AR AE = 68
Weighted average number of ordinary ARstESREERTM
shares for the purpose of calculating B AR hnAE S R i
diluted earnings per share ; 2,851,181 ; 2,393,407

bt S AR DN ST A B A BR Y FE 30 P
WK BB ) RENET EIBRFEAR AR
F=H(CT—EF FRF=H) KBK
IDRIZERR »

PRI AT S AR E A BN A A R N T 25 B
EMME2 Mt EBREERTHZEREE
TEAFT A=t REFEELEY

B/
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10. DIVIDENDS 10. RE
2018 2017
“B-NE ZFAF
US$°000 : US$'000
FEx FET
Final, paid — HK12.3 cents per —E—EFENKRARE —
ordinary share for 2017 TR @A 12.3 7810
(2017: nil for 2016) —T—+tF DT AFE) 44,582 -
Interim, paid — HK4 cents per TE-N\FENPERE —
ordinary share for 2018 TR E B 480 !
(2017: US$5,376 per ordinary share) (ZZT—+%F: :
SR EER 5,376 E7T) ! 14,496 64,512
|
: 59,078 64,512

A final dividend of HK8.4 cents (2017: HK12.3 cents) per ordinary
share in total of approximately HK$239,279,000 (equivalent to
approximately US$30,548,000) (2017: HK$349,875,000
(equivalent to approximately US$44,582,000)) in respect of the
year ended 31 December 2018 has been proposed by the
directors of the Company and is subject to approval by the
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) in the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

ARRESERERREBEZ_Z—N\F
+ A=+ HUEFERNREBRES
BT BAE8. 4B I(ZE—tF 1 1235
ill) - & #£#9239,279,0007% 7T (HHH R
4730,648,000% T ) ( = & — + F:
349,875,000 7 7T (18 55 1A 49 44,582,000
o)) WEREBERFBEFRS L&
RN EIRRER ([BRER ) #h -

&

©
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: For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ—-Z— \F+_A=+—HILtFE
|
. Ay I 72 -
! 11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT . Y% - BENEE
| Freehold land, Furniture, Computer
! leasehold fixtures equipment
] land and Leasehold Plant and and office Motor and  Construction
| buildings ~ improvements machinery equipment vehicles software in progress Total
] KA%E
! it mmwsss  aEnes  AAces o hee e a4
B i I f
! USSO00  USSO00  USSO00  USS'O00  USS'O00  USSO00  USSO00  US§'000
: i 5 57 571 £ i1 i i
] COST OR VALUATION RAGEE
(] At1 January 2017 RZ5—+5-A-H 254,450 46,284 261,859 82,240 6,186 28617 4,158 683,794
i Echange redignment B3 3% 6219 1,706 5800 3420 160 2133 &79) 18618
0 Additions RE 4188 12,022 44,626 10,825 1,019 8227 70,918 151,825
Transfers B 5,739 100 1,899 384 13 383 (8,518) -
! Disposdls tE (50 (1,404 5% 1,781 03 722 (151 (10207
]
Deficit on revaluation EFEEL (498) - - - - - - (498)
]
(] At 31 December 2017 RZE-t&
(] +-A=1-H 269,808 58,707 308,848 95,088 6975 38,578 65,528 843,532
| Exchange realignment ERA% (7,155) 2,370) 10,163) (4,303) (80) (883) (1,567) 26,521)
| Additions RE 122 5124 47539 5,458 569 4,69 97,534 172,739
Transfers b 9,599 1,701 13,459 1470 109 801 (27.139) -
) Disposals e 400) - (4.879) (2,524) (137) (1,641) - (9,581)
| Deficit on revaluation EFHEEL (2,208) - - - - - - (2,205)
]
i At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\E
(] T-A=1+-H 280,868 63,762 354,804 95,189 7436 41,549 134,356 977,964
(] »
Comprising: BE:
! At cost A 10,509 63,762 354,804 95,189 7436 41,549 134,356 707,605
: Atvluation et 270359 - - - - - - 270,359
] At31 December 2018 RA-F-NE
(] T-A=t-H 280,868 63,762 354,804 95,189 7436 41,549 134,356 977,964
: At cost fR A 12,035 58707 308,848 95,088 6,975 38578 65,528 585,759
0 At valuation it 267,773 - - - - - - 251,713
] At 31 December 2017 R-E—t%
(] T-A=1+-H 269,808 58,707 308,848 95,088 6,975 38,578 65,528 843,532
]
i DEPRECIATIONAND  HERWE
IMPAIRMENT
: At 1 January 2017 1,662 23,291 115,519 54,725 349 22,29 - 220,987
Exchange realignment EXAE 55 72 2,770 2,59 122 1,204 - 7471
] Impairment loss recognised B B2 EE B
] note ) (frsti) - 444 946 30 65 156 - 1,641
(] Provided for the year EREE 9,205 6,129 24,968 9372 999 4,698 - 55,371
i Eliminated on disposals ﬁjﬁﬂ—?iﬁﬁ 26) (743) (3623 (1,738 (362) (750) - (7.242)
' Eliminated on revaluation ~ E{AEE (9,134) - - - - - - 9,134)
| A3 December 2017 HoF—HE
| ) ?‘EH =t-H 1,762 29,843 140,580 64,987 4319 27,603 - 269,094
(] Exchange realignment B A% (92) (1,118) (4,525) (2,493) (42) (676) - (8,946)
] Reversal of impairment loss BB HEFERE
0 recognised (note i) (Prsi) - (984) (3,397) (151) (83) (117) - (4,732)
| Provided for the year EREE 10,072 8308 32,767 10,405 1,011 5297 - 67,860
Eliminated on disposals ~ EEEH (35) - 3,426) 2,178) (132 (1,485 - (7,256)
: Elminated on revaluation B 5ER 4 8787 - - - - - - 8.787)
(] At 31 December 2018 R-ZE-N\&
(] +-A=t-H 2920 36,049 161,999 70,570 5073 30,622 - 307,233
|
| CARRYING VALUES fE
At31 December 2018 RZE-N\F
: t-A=t+-H 277,948 2113 192,805 24,619 2,363 10,927 134,356 670,731
| M31 December 2017 R-E—rE
] T-A=t+-H 268,046 28,864 168,268 30,101 2,656 10,975 65,528 574,438
]
]
\
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MBHmRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HE—Z—N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Notes:

(i) For the year ended 31 December 2017, as a result of the reallocation of
business operations in the PRC factories, the Group carried out a review of
the recoverable amount of the related property, plant and equipment being
fair value less costs of disposal. The directors of the Company considered
that the recoverable amount of the relevant assets was minimal upon
disposal and an impairment loss of approximately US$1,641,000 was fully
recognised in profit or loss.

(ii) For the year ended 31 December 2018, as a result of the assessment of the
usage of the related property, plant and equipment after taking into account
of the Group's production capacity, the directors considered that the related
property, plant and equipment could be used in the production plants of the
Group. The assessment led to the reversal of an impairment loss of
approximately US$4,732,000. The recoverable amount of the relevant assets
has been determined on the basis of their value in use.

(iii) At 31 December 2018, for buildings with carrying values of US$8,450,000
(2017: US$8,570,000), no real estate title certificate has been issued. The
Group is in the process of applying for the building ownership certificates.

The above items of property, plant and equipment, except for
freehold land and construction in progress, are depreciated on a
straight line basis at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold land Over the terms of the relevant lease
Buildings 1-5% or over the term of the
relevant lease, if shorter
Leasehold 5-20% or over the term of the
improvements relevant lease, if shorter

Plant and machinery 10-50%

Furniture, fixtures and 121/,-50%
office equipment

Motor vehicles 20-25%

Computer equipment 20-33/3%
and software

1. ¥% - WEREw

BT -

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

.
TF

HE
BF

B 5
&RIE

W
A

B2

~

HE-_Z—+F+-_A=1t—HALFE" &
REPBE TR EFCEETEME 250
BRAFERLERALBEDNE - BE KL
ERRTRE S EETRE - ARARESER
B HEREBEENTKRESERTE
& B Bm 2 BIERREE B4 1,641,000
ESE

HE-_Z—)\F+-_A=+—HLEFE " H
REERAREEERGTEEEYE - BE
BERR ARREERABEVE W
ELREEARRAEBEERSE - 2 1EE
HUR B 518 B 21 494,732,000 7T ° B E
ENAKESED IR FRAEEERE -

R-ZZE-—NF+-_A=+—8 KEEA
8,450,000% Jt( — T — + 4 : 8,570,000 3
TU) IR T W AR E B A AT - ANEE
BRIEAEREREEMERES -

AR PERTIRIN i
B K& EEE DR EREER I

RITE -
+4b B 4 F 85
1-5% SIZMAEAL
FHY(ANERAE)
YERE 5-20% sk iz $8 7
A FE (E5R)
N zs 10-50%
CEER 121/,-50%
NS
20-25%

R NEH 20-331/3%

&

©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A ISR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HE—Z— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)
Fair value measurement of the Group’s land and
buildings
Certain of the Group’s land and buildings were valued on 31
December 2017 and 2018 by independent firms of professional
property valuers not related to the Group. The fair values of the
land and buildings in Bangladesh, Cambodia, Singapore and the
U.K. were determined based on the market comparable approach
reflecting recent transaction prices for similar properties,
adjusted for differences in the nature, location and condition of
the land and buildings under review. The fair values of buildings
in the PRC and Vietnam were determined based on the
depreciated replacement cost approach by estimating the current
gross replacement costs of the improvements, less allowances
for physical deterioration and all relevant forms of obsolescence
and optimisation. There has been no change to the valuation
technique during the year.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and
best use of the properties is their current use.

One of the key unobservable inputs used in valuing the land was
the price per square metre, which ranged from US$28 to US$76
(2017: US$21 to US$76). A slight increase in the price per square
metre used would result in a significant increase in the fair value
measurement of the land, and vice versa.

One of the key unobservable inputs used in valuing the buildings
was the price per square metre, which ranged from US$71 to
US$1,428 (2017: US$95 to US$1,498). A slight increase in the
price per square metre used would result in a significant increase
in the fair value measurement of the buildings, and vice versa.

> == CRYSTAL INTERNATIONAL GROUP LIMITED S4Bl AR AT mw e e e m o oo e oo m oo oo oo oo oo

.M BERRE®

AEE 1 RIEFHI 2 FEE

AEEBETIHWREFR_ZE—CtFR
TE-N\FFTA=T—HAHEAXEEH
WEBHNBELIEENEGRER G
BEo IR TIMA - RIHE -~ FNERA
Bl H) + 3 M EF QA FERE KRB
METMHZFEROTISLEAET -
WHER L REFERE - B &R
MEMZRERAE - TR FERE
MWEFNATFEIBAMGTMEREH
EREERARTE  RELEBRELAE
HERE RBLEE  RETEEEK
KEEE o FA - HERMTIEEZ -

REFTMENRFER  WENSESR
RERGAEBRAE -

T EERMANEENTERE AR
2 —REBVITRER N TF28FEITLET6
ER(ZE—+E 21ETET6ET) ©
FTARNEF K EEREMEINGEES T
HHAFEFERREM  RZIA -

EFHEMANEIENTEEHASE
Z2—RBEBYHFKER NFNETLE
1,428 (=& — 14 : 95% L= 1,498
ZE70) ° FTAME T R ERBEUE NG
BHEFAFEFENBEN - K27
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

11.

12.

A MBHmRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HE—Z—N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)  11. #)% -~ BB R 3248 @)
Fair value measurement of the Group’s land and FEF LM REFH A FEFE
buildings (Continued) (&)
Details of the Group’s land and buildings and information about RZE—NFh_E—+F+ A
the fair value hierarchy at 31 December 2018 and 2017 are as =+—H AEENTHRETHES
follows: EEBAFEEBRHERDT -
(N o .
: Fair value at Fair value at
Level 3 31.12.2018 Level 3 31.12.2017
R=Z-N\F R=Z—tF
+t=H=+—H t=HA=+-—H
E=R WATE B=4 WATE
US$'000 | US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
FET SFEa FET FEr
Land and buildings R EBEING |
outside Hong Kong T RIEF 270,359 270,359 | 257,773 257,773
There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during both years. FRN B mEE ASEL -
Had land and buildings at valuation been carried at cost less 8 A (B B 130 M AR AR 2 5T 3T
accumulated depreciation, the aggregate carrying values of land E7E - B+ REFEEmAEEBLY
and buildings would have been approximately US$194,230,000 /194,230,000 T( — & — £ F:
(2017: US$186,125,000). 186,125,000 7T) °
At 31 December 2018, land and buildings with carrying values of R-ZE-N\F+_A=+—H"  EEE
approximately US$10,303,000 (2017: US$12,835,000) have been #710,303,000% t( — & — + F:
pledged to banks to secure general banking facilities granted to 12,835,000 ) L RiEFE EH T
the Group. R1T AREEERN—RIBITREE
o
DEPOSITS PAID FOR ACQUISITION OF 12. BBV - B KR

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The deposits were paid by the Group in connection with the
acquisition of property, plant and equipment and the related
capital commitments are disclosed in note 33.

XYWEE
AREHLWYE BB RRBLAE
e BB A A 2 33 B o

N e - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - g -
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A MBHRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HE—Z— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

13.

14,

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

13. FESEEFKIE

:‘ 2018 2017
! —E-N\F —E—tF
US$°000 US$'000
FEx FET
|
Analysed for reporting purposes as: EBRONA '
Non-current assets FEREEE 37,298 34,752
Current assets mENEE 960 879
| i
: 38,258 | 35,631
GOODWILL 14, HgE
US$'000
FET
COST B
At 1 January 2017, 31 December 2017 and 31 RZFE—+tF—H—H8"
December 2018 —tF+-_A=1+—8xk

—N\E+=-A=+—H

74,941

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill and brand name
(note 15) of approximately US$74,941,000 (2017:
US$74,941,000) and US$31,777,000 (2017: US$31,777,000),
respectively, have been allocated to the CGU representing Vista.

The recoverable amount of the CGU of Vista at 31 December
2018 has been calculated based on its value in use calculation.
That calculation uses cash flow projections based on financial
projections approved by management of the Group covering a
three-year period (2017: three-year) with a pre-tax discount rate
of 156.6% (2017: 15.3%), yearly growth rate of revenue of 0% to
10% (2017: 10%) and gross margins of 18.8% to 19.4% (2017:
19.1%). Cash flows beyond the three-year period are
extrapolated using a steady 3% (2017: 3%) growth rate. Other
key assumptions for the value in use calculation relate to the
estimation of cash flows, which includes projected sales. The
estimation of the key assumptions is based on past performance
of Vista and management'’s expectations of market conditions.
The Group has not recognised an impairment loss during the year
ended 31 December 2018 (2017: nil) based on the impairment
assessment performed.

FUREBIE M S © #74,941,000% 7T (=
T—+4F 1 74,941,000 7T) & 31,777,000
EL(ZZF—+% 31,777,000 7T) B
BELMEETE(KiE15) E2RINER
R &K VistaW IR & EE BN -

VistaWIR & EAEMR T — \F+=
B=Z+—B®a e B RBEFH
BEAE ZiTERARSREEE
P M‘EZK%I%E%tt)&mﬁﬁ%ﬁ“ﬂu
T OBREZFHM(ZZ—+1F:
F) BREAAIAEAE156% (2T — JC
F:153%) WRFEKERRINE
10% (ZZF—+tF 1 10%) ARFEF R A
18.8% £19.4% (ZF—+%F :191%) °
BE=-FHENRESREFEA3I% (2
—tF :3%) MR EEREEL M -
ARATEERAEENEMEIERRER
%%EEH%%EWE’Jfﬁiméﬁmﬁfa
FEERRIIBE VistalBEREBLE
B M RATERET A Eti_g
—\F+ZA=+—HILFE A£EH
W AR I AT 1T AR E R R E S
B(ZZ—+F 8|)-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZE—

14. GOODWILL (Continued)

The recoverable amount of the CGU of Vista exceeds its carrying
amount by US$17,710,000 (2017: US$21,776,000) at 31
December 2018.

The effect of the reasonably possible change in key assumptions
on the calculation of value in use of the CGU of Vista, which
would cause the carrying amount to exceed its recoverable
amount is disclosed below.

If the yearly growth rate of revenue during the three-year period
decreased by 1% or 3% (2017: 1% or 3%) and all other variables
were held constant, the carrying amount of the CGU of Vista
would not exceed its recoverable amount in both years.

If the gross margins decreased by 0.5% or 1% (2017: 0.5% or
1%) and all other variables were held constant, the carrying
amount of the CGU of Vista would exceed its recoverable
amount by approximately nil or US$4,054,000 (2017: nil or nil),
respectively, at 31 December 2018.

If the pre-tax discount rate increased by 0.5% or 1% (2017: 0.5%
or 1%) and all other variables were held constant, the carrying
amount of the CGU of Vista would not exceed its recoverable
amount in both years.

If the long-term growth rate decreased by 0.5% or 1% (2017:
0.5% or 1%) and all other variables were held constant, the
carrying amount of the CGU of Vista would not exceed its
recoverable amount in both years.

iR e B RS R M
T \Ft-ASt-ALEE

4. B2 )

RZE-—NF+_A=+—H " Vistaiy
ReEABMMATKRESERLERT
EML % A17,710,000E T (ZE—+
£ :21,776,000%7T) °

T EBERAIGEBEENE YT H Vista®y
fﬁ%%iﬁuﬁ)ﬂ BENTZEBEIR
E{EHR L E A DU e B (0 T AT IER) -

i = FHRAM N EFEIERETF1%
H3%(ZE—EF :1%3%) * MFT
EEMEERBTE  VistaWIRESEAL
BARMEFEHTSBAEATKE S
B o

MEFETPE0L% 1% (ZF—HF :
o.5%ﬁ1%> AT EMEERET

VistaWIREEEBSMUR T —\F
+ A=+— El#ﬁ%ﬁ@ﬂ“\%ﬁﬂﬁ
A Y (B & 58 49 Z 54,054,000 % T (=
—+tF THT) -

WA AT IR EA0E%H1% (==
—tF 1 05%8H1%) MATEEMES
RIFTE - VistaW IR & EE B LA ME
FEHTBBEMKESEE -

B R ETFEOL%HI%(ZE
—+tF:05%H1%) MEAABEHMES
RETE  VistalWIR & EEBMARE
FEHISHBBEITWESEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A ISR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HE—Z— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

(&)

15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 15. BILEE

Customer Brand
relationship name Total
EERE mEEH et
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
FET FET FET
COST BN
At 1 January 2017, RZE—+F—H—8"
31 December 2017 —E—+F
and 31 December 2018 +-A=t+—"HK
—E-)N\F
+=-A=+—H 73,750 31,777 105,527
AMORTISATION By
At 1 January 2017 RZE—+F—H—H - - -
Provided for the year FREE 4,917 - 4,917
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+tF
+=—A=+—H 4,917 - 4,917
Provided for the year FREE 4,917 - 4,917
At 31 December 2018 RZE—N\F
+=-—A=+—H 9,834 - 9,834
CARRYING VALUE REE
At 31 December 2018 R-ZZ—N\F
+=-A=+—H 63,916 31,777 95,693
At 31 December 2017 NZE—+F
+—-A=+—H 68,833 31,777 100,610

For the purpose of impairment testing, brand name has been
allocated to the CGU representing Vista (note 14).

RERARMNE  mEEHESEER
& Vista B3R @ E A B (I 14) -

,------------------------------------------

> == CRYSTAL INTERNATIONAL GROUP LIMITED S4Bl AR AT mw e e e m o oo e oo m oo oo oo oo oo

Customer relationship and brand name acquired in the business
combination are identified and recognised as intangible assets.

The aggregate amount of customer relationship is amortised over
the period of the useful lives of the various relationships, which
is assessed as being 15 years. Brand name is treated as having
an indefinite useful life because it is expected to contribute to
net cash inflows to the Group indefinitely. Therefore, it is not
amortised until its useful life is determined to be finite.

Particulars regarding impairment testing of goodwill and other
intangible assets are set out in note 14.

EBamTPRENTEPERkmE R
R R ER DB EE

EFBERAERSRBERNERFHY
F#EE - 5T R15F - MBEBBER
BERERAEHFY  RESEES
ERPAAEERERFRSAA -
b mEREATHE  BEEHEAER
FHREERBERARL

BENEMELEERENANFBESR
AHEE14 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE ISR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HE—Z—N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

16. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 16. REEE N EIMER

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—tF

US$'000 US$'000

FEx FETT

Cost of unlisted investment in an associate FAE 2 A RI3E_E TR E AR A 125 125
Share of post-acquisition loss and JEEWEREE R EMEERS

other comprehensive expense (2,112) (3,554)

(1,987) (3,429)

Deemed contribution to an associate (note) 18 {E¥1EL < N RIHY HE (M) 18,625 18,625

16,638 15,196

Note: Deemed contribution to an associate represents a loan advanced to an MisE -
associate which is unsecured, interest-free and without fixed repayment
terms. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the loan in substance

BAEEE R R EEmEE QR RN

EIEA - B R EE

=y

ERRHER - KARF]

EERR ZEREELBRNBEARR

formed part of the investment in an associate. BH—D -
At 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group has interest in the R-ZE-NER—_FE—+E+=A
following associate: =+—H FAEERTIBEARES

Proportion of

Place of nominal value of
incorporation/ Class of issued capital Proportion of
Name of entity operation shares held held by the Group  voting power held Principal activity
AEBECRT
BRAE TR XY FAEROER BRAE E LBl FrisRopglLhl FEER
PCGT Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 25% 25% Trading of textile
products
B LRk HEmES
The above associate is accounted for using the equity method in FutB BN R ARSI ENZE LSS
these consolidated financial statements. B/ AL o

N e - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 6 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A ISR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HE—Z— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

16. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued) 16. REFE N RIVER (o)
Information of an associate that is not material —[EHEEAZERE )G HEF
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
US$'000 US$'000
SEEI N FET
The Group's share of profit (loss) REEEEFRET (E518)
for the year 1,623 (2,669)
The Group's share of other AEBEGEFAEMEZE (FAX)
comprehensive (expense) WA
income for the year (181) 64
The Group's share of total AEBEEFRZERA (FAX)
comprehensive income Pk
(expense) for the year 1,442 (2,605)
The Group's share of the net AEEEGE—EEEARAEFE !
liabilities of an associate ! (1,987) (3,429)
e
17. LOAN RECEIVABLES 17. BEINERK
Except for the amounts of approximately US$740,000 (2017: BRi%29% (= F—+ 4 :29%) HIEF|
US$1,038,000) which carry interest rates of 2.9% (2017: 2.9%) RETBR#740,000E T (Z T —+F ¢
per annum, the amounts are unsecured, interest-free and 1,038,00037T)51 - BREFKIATIEEHR -
repayable by instalments until 2025. REABOHN T _RFHESE -

e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE ISR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HE—Z—N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

18. INVENTORIES 18. &
== -
: 2018 2017
! —E-N\F —E—tF
: US$'000 US$'000
| FET FET
i
Raw materials E R s 96,267 | 83,882
Work in progress RS, 162,365 i 138,573
Finished goods 2URK T 19,175 26,917
277,807 249,372

At 31 December 2018, approximately US$5,374,000 (2017:
US$8,100,000) of the Group's inventories have been pledged to
banks to secure general banking facilities granted to the Group.

RZZE-NEFE+_A=+—8 K&£H
FET 45,374,000 T (Z 8 —+ 4 :
8,100,000k t) EE M FIR1T - LUK
AEEERH—RIBITHRE -

19. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 19. EZEINFIE - BIREE
=+,
N H A FE R FR 8
T )
2018 | 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
US$'000 US$'000
SFEEm FETT
|
Trade receivables E 5 EWGIR 272,711 285,883
Less: allowance for credit losses B EEEERE
(2017: doubtful debts) (ZZ2—+F  REREHH) = (38)
| 272,711 285,845
Bills receivable el EE 1,310 | 949
Temporary payments a2 e 11,476 6,283
Other deposits and prepayments H ke KIEFOR 51,723 44,520
: 337,220 337,597

At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2018, trade receivables
from contracts with customers amounted to US$272,711,000
and US$285,883,000, respectively.

RZF-N\F+ZA=+—HR=ZF
—N\F—A—H KEEFAEHNES
& W 3K E o Bl £272,711,0003% T &
285,883,000 E T °

At 31 December 2018, approximately US$30,037,000 (2017:
US$31,781,000) of the Group's trade receivables have been
pledged to banks to secure general banking facilities granted to
the Group.

RZEBE-N\EFE+-A=+—H8 K&£E
Z 5 JiE W F 8 & 4930,037,000% T (=
T— 4 : 31,781,000 7T) D EH TR
17 B ASEEERN—RIBITHE -

N e - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 6 -
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19. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 19. EFEWRFE - EWEE
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(Continued)

The Group allows credit periods ranging from 15 to 120 days to
its trade customers. The following is an aged analysis of trade
receivables, net of allowance for credit losses (2017: doubtful
debts), based on invoice dates.

N ELAh e W FROE ()
AEERTESELPNFI5E2120 KK
EAR - UTAENBREZEAHENE SR
WHIERR ST (ENKREESERE
% REEEMH)) -

E 2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
US$'000 US$'000
Fxx FET

|
Within 60 days 60 KA 253,237 263,388
61 to 90 days 61E90K 18,336 | 19,030
91 to 120 days I E120K 987 2,070
over 120 days 120 RA E 151 1,357
272,711 | 285,845

U

Before accepting any new customers, the Group uses an internal
credit assessment process to assess the potential customers’
credit quality and defines credit limits by customer. Limits
attributed to customers are reviewed regularly.

At 31 December 2018, included in the Group's trade receivables
balance are debtors with aggregate carrying amounts of
approximately US$36,687,000 which are past due at the end of
the reporting period. Out of the past due balances, US$62,000
has been past due over 90 days and is not considered as in
default because the trade receivables are of good credit quality
and those debtors did not have any default payment history. The
Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

At 31 December 2017, included in the Group's trade receivables
were debtors with aggregate carrying amounts of approximately
US$28,588,000 which were past due at the end of the reporting
period and the Group had not provided for impairment loss. The
Group did not hold any collateral over these balances. The
average age of these receivables was 30 days. In the opinion of
the directors of the Company, the trade receivables which were
past due but not impaired were of good credit quality.

B EFA - ARBERARERIE
AREREFIEEEEPNEREE -
TiIEFPAREERRE - EPHNRAS
T AR HimAT o

RZZE-NEFE+_A=+—H8 K&£EH
E5RUFRBEAFPEEDLBEDR
36,687,000 3% JT 1) fE I AR TB A R 5 HR R
B o s HA &S 82 2 # 62,000 T E B
HIBRIOX  ERERABEL  RARE
ERWHRBEREERT  MABE
BN INVEE B HA N R0 8% - REEI
B S AR A MR -

RZEBE—+F+-A=+—H8 K&£E
BESRMBUREPEBDALEDND A
28,588,000 3 7T K FE AR TR A 3R 5 BA R
BE AEETETIRRESE -
AEBYERZEEHITETMIEAF
e ZERWERRAFIREA30K °
ARREEZERE  CHHEYEREN
BIRWFIBEREERT -
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19. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

Before application of IFRS 9 on 1 January 2018

The following was an aged analysis of trade receivables which
were past due but not impaired, based on the dates due.

19.

B EWFIE BEREE
N E i fE IR R0 ()
R-ZFE—-NF—F—HEREKE
B3R & XERIE 9 %5 B

AT B EA B B O e 3 R E B
5 MR HOBR S 5 AT o

2017
ZE—+F
US$'000
FET
Overdue by: wHE

1-60 days 1E260K 28,369
61-90 days 61 £ 90K 126
over 90 days 90 KA E 93
28,588

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts: R ER B
2017
ZE—+F
US$'000
FET
At beginning of the year F1) 880
Reversal of allowance for the year FARERE (842)
At end of the year FR 38

\-------------------------------------------_----_-_--_-_---_---_-____,€,/
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19.

20.
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TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 19. EFEWRFE - EWEE
(Continued) )Y@ \'ﬂﬁﬁg l‘l& /TA IE (8®)
Upon application of IFRS 9 on 1 January 2018 R-E-—NF—HF—HEFEKE
BB EEREIF#E
Movement in lifetime ECL that has been recognised for trade WBIESLERE ZEINGIBRER L BT
receivables in accordance with the simplified approach is as E=EEENEHIT
follows:
:‘ 2018 \l
—E-N\F
US$'000
SFE
At 31 December 2017 WZE—+F+=A *+— H 38
Adjustment upon application of IFRS 9 PAJE B BB B 75 R 25 2 BI) 55 O S A 5 -
At 1 January 2018 under IFRS 9 RZZE-—NF—A—AREEEHBRSE
AEBIZE 955 38
Write off 5 (38)
At 31 December 2018 RZE—-N\F+=ZA=1+—H i - i

Details of the impairment assessment of trade and other
receivables for the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in
note 32.

TRADE RECEIVABLES AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

As part of the Group's cash flow management, the Group has
the practice of factoring certain trade receivables to financial
institutions before the receivables are due for repayment. The
factored trade receivables are derecognised on the basis that the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards to
the relevant counterparties. Accordingly, such trade receivables
were under a business model which is held to collect contractual
cash flows and to sell, and have been reclassified to trade
receivables at FVTOCI.

At 31 December 2018, the effective interest rates of the
factoring trade receivables at FVTOCI ranged from 2.77% to
2.90% per annum. Details of the valuation techniques and key
inputs adopted for their fair value measurements are disclosed in
note 32c.

Details of the impairment assessment of trade receivables at
FVTOCI for the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in
note 32.

20.

B2 \FE+-_A=+—HIHF
- B REMEWGIERENGEFS
A EES2 ©

BN ES AHMEER
AWE 5 EWRIE

IEAAEERS B E RN —i $
R B LR B SRS
S R RIS ??%mw o
RS 581 15 M B
MR BT - MR BN
HER IR - Bl ZEESEENR
ERRE R ERRA GRS TR RS
MEBERARE  HBEARATE
AR 2 E BT B RIHOR -

TNa tl/

W_EBE—-NE+-A=+—8 1&RAQ¥F
Bt AEt2ERAGTENREE SHE
WRIENEBRFERNEN F277% =
290% - BRAAFEFEFANMGEER
i I B A BURFHIB M FE32c W EE -

ERBE—_ZT-)\F+T-_A=1+—HL
EF?E/ASP1Eu+)\E1\1‘@1ﬁH&J\a+§E’]
B 5 UG IR R ERHA F IS BN RES2
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21. BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances carry interest at market rates ranging from 0% to
3.50% (2017: 0% to 1.76%) per annum.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group has assessed
the impairment of bank balances and has concluded that the

1. RITERKRBEE

RITEBENTBF0% E3.50% (==
—tF 0% E1.76% )T HHERTE ©

BE_T-N\F+_A=t—HL*F
B REBCHIRTERKETRET

probability of defaults of the counterparty banks are insignificant ity XRBLZIWITELDR A GEMEIL T
and accordingly, no allowance for credit losses is provided.

BA - At EHREEERRME -

22. SHARE CAPITAL 22. BN
Number of Share
shares capital
RoEE ;&N
‘000 US$'000
F iz FET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each (note i) S IXEE0.01 78 Ty L smpR (FI=E)
Authorised: EE
At 1 January 2017 RZZ—+F—HA—H 12 12
Shares repurchased and cancelled BELQMEFHERS (12) (12)
Increase of shares pursuant to RIFEEEEE NG
re-denomination 3,500,000 4,482
At 31 December 2017 and RZE—+tF+_A=+—HK
31 December 2018 —E-N\FE+-_A=+—H 3,500,000 4,482
Issued and fully paid: ERITRARE
At 1 January 2017 RZE2E—tF—H—H 12 12
Shares repurchased and cancelled (note i) B 8B &2 5T 54508145 (HEEi) (12) (12)
Issue of shares pursuant to RIFEBEEEZEITRG (WD)
re-denomination (note i) 2,306,880 2,954
Issue of shares on Share Award BRI B @) 5T 21 B 21T IR (D
Scheme B (note ii) (BE&Ei) 13,062 17
Issue of shares on Global Offering (note iii) Fh & IREEEZEITIRMD (MI5Eii) 509,300 653
Issue of shares on exercise of PABFRAC AR T ITRD
over-allotment option (note iv) (B&Fiv) 23,580 30
At 31 December 2017 and RZIE—+tF+_A=+—HK
31 December 2018 —E2-NF+ZA=1+—A1 2,852,822 3,654

N e - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 6 -
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22. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

(i) On 11 October 2017, the authorised share capital was increased by
HK$35,000,000 divided into 3,500,000,000 shares of par value of HK$0.01
each. On the same day, the Company issued an aggregate of 2,306,880,000
ordinary shares of a par value of HK$0.01 each, credited as fully paid, to the
existing shareholders in proportion to their respective shareholdings and
immediately following the issue of the ordinary shares, the 12,000 issued
ordinary shares of a par value of US$1.00 each held by the then shareholders
were repurchased at an aggregate consideration of HK$23,068,800 out of
the proceeds of the issue of the ordinary shares and all 12,000 ordinary
shares of a par value of US$1.00 each were cancelled immediately upon
their repurchase.

(ii) On 11 October 2017, 13,062,000 shares of HK$0.01 each were issued to a
trustee, for the purpose of the Share Award Scheme B (as defined in note
30). 4,754,000 shares and 4,046,500 shares vested and were issued to
eligible persons on 3 November 2017 and 3 November 2018, respectively,
while the entitlement to 296,500 shares lapsed during the year ended 31
December 2018. The remaining shares held by the trustee are deemed
issued as share capital. Details of the movement of the Share Award
Scheme B are disclosed in note 30.

(iii) The Company’s shares were listed on the Stock Exchange on 3 November
2017. The Company allotted and issued a total of 509,300,000 new ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each to the public at a price of HK$7.50 per share
pursuant to the Global Offering.

(iv) The over-allotment option was exercised on 24 November 2017 for the issue
of 23,580,000 shares of the Company of HK$0.01 each at a price of HK$7.50
per share.

The new shares rank pari passu with the existing shares in all
respects

> == CRYSTAL INTERNATIONAL GROUP LIMITED S4Bl AR AT mw e e e m o oo e oo m oo oo oo oo oo

22. PR (@)

GEE

(i) RZZE—tF+A+—B  FZEBRAEMN
35,000,000 % 7t (% 4 3,500,000,000 % & fx
EE0.01 B THARM) - AIB - AARIRE
ERRSEMERERNRES XBT
2,306,880,000 fi% & A% [ (& 0.01 7% 7t A BR 51l
ER L AR BEBTBRETE &
PR AT A A9 12,000 I B AR EE 1.00E T
BB 317 E MR B R 48 (823,068,800 7T
LAZETTEBARFT S FIARE R - 12,000 A% & A%
EE1.00ETHERBRERERE Y ENEH

(ii) WZ—ZE—+4%+7+—H 13,062,000 =
A& TE{E 0.01 A 7T AR5 B st AR 19 22 Ep 5+ 21 B
(E#& R MFE30) 81T FXFEA » 4,754,000
fi% % 4,046,500 B 5 DRI =T — £ F
+—A=ZBR-Z—N\FE+—A=ZAREBK
BT T EEMAL - )P K% 296,500 A% i% 1
WEFARBEE-"T—N\F+_A=+—8
IFFFERK - LA TROWAR BIE
BT BEKRMEBTEBNESF
BERMIE30 5 -

(il  ARFBRHR-_FT—+F+—A=ZBHEEX
FrEm o RIE2HES - KRRIZRERK7.50
BTHEBAARALA LR RET
509,300,000 & & A& EI1E 0.01 Bt M #7 & i@
B o

(iv) BBERECER-_ZT—+tF+—A=-+mAB
HEATE - ARSI 7.50 8 TR ERETAL
723,580,000 & AR EI1E 0.01 BT H XD °

MBEOERETHERBERNZFARS
R
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23. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER PAYABLES 23. ESENAR ESE\'H—,—?J@
N H b fE ﬁ g

2018 2017

: —E-N\F —t4F

! US$'000 US$'000

! SFEEou FET

Trade payables B 5 RIR 178,978 142,412

Bills payable FENEE 3,455 6,899

Accrued staff cost JEET B TR A 81,368 74,927

Other payables H b FET T8 49,797 50,037

Other accruals HAib st E 50,838 55,662
Total trade, bills and other payables BEOREMNFE EBNEER

E ARSI RE 364,436 329,937

The credit period of trade payables is from 14 to 60 days.

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables based on

EE L AP

UTAEREZEHNE S RNFUER

ENERBEANT14E60K -

invoice dates. BT ©
2018 2017
—E-NF —tF
US$'000 US$'000
SFEEm FET
Within 60 days 60 XN 155,019 139,960
61 to 90 days 61 290K 22,510 1,515
91 to 120 days 91 £ 120K 666 467
over 120 days 120 KA 783 470
: 178,978 142,412
At 31 December 2018, the non-current amounts are related to RZE—N\F+ZA=+—H HEE
the purchase of property, plant and equipment and are - BERZEEBENIERBRIER
unsecured, interest-free and repayable from 2020 to 2021 (2017: T 28 &/AEA —F= Tfﬁ?: =
T —FREE(Z -z

repayable from 2019 to 2021).

—ﬂii_Y_—EEZ@)

//\

&
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23. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER PAYABLES (continuedy  23. B 5 FE{ITRIE « FE{TEHE
N LA FE A5 FRIE ()
The total is analysed for reporting purposes as: BT RE RN A -

2018 2017
—E-N\F ZE—+F
US$°000 US$'000
FEx FET
Current mEh 360,246 321,004
Non-current FERH 4,190 8,933
364,436 329,937
24. DEFERRED TAXATION 24. IEFERIIE
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets) RAFERBEFENEEREIEZEL
recognised and their movements during the current and prior MBEAE(EE) REFENT -
years:
Fair value
adjustment  Accelerated Defined
on business tax  Revaluation benefit Tax
combination depreciation of properties liabilities losses Total
£Baft
AVERE MERERE EftN% EHENEE WIEES #st

US$'000  US$'000  US$'000  US$'000  US$'000  USS'000
TXR TXT TXR TXT TXR XN

At 1 January 2017 RZZ—+F-A-H 12,537 291 17,165 (995) - 28,998
Exchange realignment R AR - 15 729 (50) (25) 669
Charge to other comprehensive B Et2EKA

income - - 1,670 1,027 - 2,697
(Credit) charge to profitor loss  (3FA)f0R#E% (836) 744 29 (26) (1,021) (1,110)
At 31 December 2017 WZE—+F+-A=1—H 11,701 1,050 19,593 (44) (1,046) 31,254
Exchange realignment [ - (26) (683) - 36 (673)
Charge to other comprehensive B E M2 E WA

income - - 1,416 105 - 1,621
(Credit) charge to profitorloss (3t A) Ik #EZR (836) (78) 812 (61) 746 583
At 31 December 2018 RZE-\F+-A=1-H 10,865 946 21,138 - (264) 32,685
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24. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)

At 31 December 2018, the Group had unused tax losses of
approximately US$32,307,000 (2017: US$36,673,000) available
for offset against future profits. A deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of US$1,608,000 (2017: US$6,239,000) of
such losses. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of the remaining US$30,699,000 (2017: US$30,434,000)
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. Except for
unrecognised tax losses of approximately US$3,498,000 (2017:
US$4,992,000) that can be used to continuously offset against
taxable profits up to 5 years from the year in which the loss is
incurred, other losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

24,

IESERLIE ()

W_EBE—-NE+-A=+—8 x&£H
AB)AIBEEH 432,307,000k T(=
T —+4 : 36,673,000 7T) * A K
RIHEF - B BZFEE1,608,000% 7T
~ZT— 4 16,239,000 X 7T ) HERIRIT
RIEEE - ARKRREF mEETEA -
30 4 564 T B 830,699,000 T (=&
—-t4F 1 30,434,000 7T ) FERIEL R 1A
BE o BRARMERBIIEEEL 3,498,000 3%
TE(—ZT—+4% :4,992,000%7T) Al B
EEEELEFTEREERSFRHEE
PRBURFIN - HAbE 1B ] IR AR e o

&
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25. RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS 25. RIREAIETE|

,------------------------------------------------
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Defined contribution plans

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF
Scheme”) for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in
funds under the control of an independent trustee. Under the
rules of the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are
each required to make contributions to the scheme at rates
specified in the rules. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the MPF Scheme is to make the required
contributions under the scheme.

The Group also participates in defined contribution retirement
schemes organised by the relevant local government authorities
in the PRC and other jurisdictions where the Group operates.
Certain employees of the Group eligible for participating in the
retirement schemes are entitled to retirement benefits from the
schemes. The Group is required to make contributions to the
retirement schemes up to the time of retirement of the eligible
employees, excluding those employees who resign before their
retirement, at a percentage that is specified by the local
government authorities.

The total expense recognised in profit or loss of approximately
US$49,812,000 (2017: US$40,722,000) represents contributions
payable to these plans by the Group at rates specified in the
rules of the plans. All contributions due in respect of the years
ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 have been paid to the plans.

Defined benefit plan

The Group operates a funded defined benefit scheme for
qualifying employees of its subsidiaries in the U.K. that has been
closed to new members since 1999. Under the scheme, the
employees are entitled to retirement benefits as a percentage of
final salary on attainment of the retirement age. No other post-
retirement benefits are provided.

The plan in the U.K. exposes the Group to actuarially calculated
risks, such as investment risk, interest rate risk, inflation risk and
longevity risk.

ERERNEE
AEBRFCRBIERTBEE G &
PIEREREARERERIAHEAES
ArEl((RRERtE])  BEISHEEE
BINARERBIZTAZHNES
NEERE - RIFBESTEINRA
BENIEEHEZRM AR TE L R AT
B - AREBRRE S S AME—
RERREBT L L EHK -

AREETF2EPE LA REEME LR
FERDAHE IR AR B 30 07 BRAT AR A 0 TE RE AR
FORREHE - AERET S ERSEENK
ArEMETREAEEZAZFEMNE
KEH - AEEARGERER (TR
BRNATEHI AR R ) RINAT IR M )T BUR#
BRI TE H) B 20 LL[RIR IR &I R -

P8 R 48 5 2 4949,812,000 % 7T
(ZZ— -+t 40,722,000 ) IERE
EEZsT 2R AR T R A% S S
EER R - BE-_Z—-NER_Z
—tF+-_A=Z+—HILFE FED
HRERBE A B EIED -

E BRI a8
AEERRENBRARSERERERY
EeAETHEBMTE %8 A
—NNNEFREUHER R EIHAKE K -
REZE  BEBEEZENRKEF
HERFRERFREREHFEHX
—ADLL o WEEHHEAMRKRE

REMZTESARERRBRTERE
Rk~ FIERER - RRERRESRER

faray 72N
SRR
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25. RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS (continued)

Defined benefit plan (Continued)

Investment risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is measured
by discounting the best estimate of future cash flows to be paid
out by the plan using the projected unit credit method; if the
return on plan assets is below this rate, it will create a plan
deficit. Currently the plan has a relatively balanced portfolio in
equity investments, diversified growth funds, debt investments,
liability driven investment funds and a property fund. Due to the
long-term nature of the plan liabilities, the trustees of the pension
fund consider it appropriate that the plan assets should be
invested in the portfolio to leverage the return generated by the
fund.

Interest rate risk

A decrease in the interest rate will increase the plan liability;
however, this will be partially offset by an increase in the return
on the plan’s corporate bonds and liability driven investment
funds.

Inflation risk
The plan allows for rates of inflation experienced in the U.K. to
apply to prospective benefits. The amounts of inflation
adjustments are calculated in accordance with indices set out in
the plan deed.

Longevity risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated
by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan
participants. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan
participants will increase the plan’s liability.

The most recent actuarial valuation of plan assets and the
assessment of the present value of the defined benefit
obligations were carried out on 31 December 2016 by Jardine
Lloyd Thompson Group PLC located at The St Botolph Building,
138 Houndsditch, London and updated on an approximate basis
to 31 December 2018. The present value of plan liabilities is
measured by discounting the best estimate of future cash flows
to be paid out by the plan using the projected unit credit method.

25.
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EEEMNENMEEMERTEENE
ERER A B Jardine Lloyd Thompson
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138 Houndsditch, London) 7 —
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25. RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS (Continued) 25. RIKERIFTE e

Defined benefit plan (Continued) EEEFE B
The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial AREEEEN T E/EENT
valuations are as follows:
|‘ 2018 2017
| —®-NF| —T+%F
Discount rate BhIR &R 2.8% 2.4%
Expected return on plan assets: FrE|EETERER ¢
— equities and property fund — REREES 6.6% 6.6%
- bonds and cash — EENRS | 3.3% 3.1%
Future pension increases REBRARESERE | 3.2% 31%
Inflation rate LHET 3.3% 32%
Revaluation rate for deferred pensioners  EE4BEURIRS A B E(H X 2.3% 2.2%

Lz ERE AT BN Ba M E M2 ER

Amounts recognised in profit or loss and other comprehensive

,-----------------------------------------
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income in respect of this defined benefit plan are as follows: AR SEET -
2018 \I 2017
—B-N\F | —+4F
US$'000 US$'000
FEx FET
Service cost AR 19 B S
Past service cost ‘AR A (363) -
Net interest income (expense) RIBRERAFFEWA (FAXR)
recognised in profit or loss 3 (151)
(360) (151)
Remeasurement of the net defined BTt E RN B EFE :
benefit liabilities: :
Return on plan assets (excluding FrEIEERRGIAFEFE
amounts included in net interest WA B BB RN
income/expense) (2,965): 3,194
Actuarial gains (losses) arising from IS REREHELNBENRZ
changes in financial assumptions (E18) 2,633 (1,019)
Actuarial (losses) gains arising from EEAEELEREE (BE)
experience adjustments Wz (909) 577
Actuarial gains arising from changes in AAFFHBERESHEER
demographic assumptions FEE U 1,063 2,513
Components of defined benefit costs P EAth 2 E WA W R A E FE R A
recognised in other comprehensive AR ES
income (178) 5,265
:
Total da=t : (538) 5,114
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25. RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS (continued) 25.
Defined benefit plan (Continued)
The net interest expense for both years is included in the
employee benefits expense in profit or loss.

The adjustment arising from the remeasurement of the net
defined benefit liabilities is included in other comprehensive
income.

The amount included in the consolidated statement of financial
position arising from the Group’s obligation in respect of its
defined benefit plan is as follows:

BB ET 8 )

JE BB 1 FET &) (450)

B4 )R F8 B 5 A2 IR A
ERIEE -

e

e

ENFTETERIABEFEELN
FEARMEEA -

AEBEERAHHE LB ALA
B TR

2018 2017
—E-N\F —ZEFE—+F
US$'000 US$'000
FEx FET
Present value of funded defined A EHEEMELRE

benefit obligations 40,566 46,493
Fair value of plan assets EEEATE (40,566) (46,228)

Net liability arising from defined REEBEENEENBETE
benefit obligations - 265

Movements in the present value of the defined benefit
obligations in both years were as follows:

MEFEERENEERENESMT

:‘ 2018 : 2017
—EB-N\F —T—tF
US$000 US$'000
Fx FExT

I
At beginning of the year REH] 46,493 47,012
Exchange realignment ME H B (2,481) 4,264
Interest cost B A 1,083 1,231
Benefits paid EfER (2,105) (3,943)
Past service cost BERMD KA 363 -
Actuarial gains B8 W= (2,787) (2,071)
At end of the year RER : 40,566 ! 46,493

&

©
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25. RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS (continued)
Defined benefit plan (Continued)
Movements in the fair value of the plan assets in both years

25. RIKERIFTE e
EFERGTE (&)
MAFES NEEATEOSHMT -

,--------------------------------------
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were as follows:

| 2018 ! 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
US$'000 US$'000
FEx FET
At beginning of the year RF ) 46,228 41,153
Exchange realignment b S B (2,479) 3,972
Interest income B A 1,086 1,080
Return on plan assets SHEIEEDR (2,965) 3,194
Benefits paid EEH (2,105) (3,943)
Contributions from employer B EH 801 772
At end of the year RER s 40,566 ! 46,228
The fair values of the plan assets at the end of the reporting REEER  SEFEEENATEN
period for each category are as follows: T
I‘ 2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
US$'000 US$'000
FEx FET
]
Cash and cash equivalents B4 MESEEY 20 105
Equity investments RS & 7,817 8,353
Diversified growth funds ZalbigrES 14,495 15,891
Liability driven investment funds BERHNKREES 11,963 13,530
Debt investments BEBIRE 4,774 5,126
Property fund MEES 1,497 3,223
Total HREt 40,566 | 46,228
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25. RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS (continued)

Defined benefit plan (Continued)

The fair values of the above equity and debt investments and
property fund are determined based on quoted market prices in
active markets.

The actual return on plan assets was an approximate loss of
US$1,879,000 (2017: gain of US$4,274,000).

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the
defined obligation are discount rate, inflation and mortality. The
sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on
reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions
occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all
other assumptions constant.

° If the discount rate decreases by 0.25%, the defined
benefit obligation would increase by 4.4% (2017: 4.1%).

° If the discount rate increases by 0.25%, the defined benefit
obligation would decrease by 4.1% (2017: 3.8%).

° If the inflation rate increases by 0.25%, the defined benefit
obligation would increase by 2.5% (2017: 2.5%).

° If the life expectancy increases by one year for both men
and women, the defined benefit obligation would increase
by 3.7% (2017: 3.3%).

The sensitivity analyses presented above may not be
representative of the actual change in the defined benefit
obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would
occur in isolation from one another as some of the assumptions
may be correlated.

In presenting the above sensitivity analyses, the present value of
the defined benefit obligation has been calculated using the
projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period,
which is also applied in calculating the defined benefit obligation
liability recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

The average duration of the defined benefit obligation at 31
December 2018 is 18 years (2017: 16 years).

The contributions expected to be made by the Group to the
defined benefit plan during the following 12 months at 31
December 2018 were US$784,000 (2017: US$807,000).

25.

iR e B RS R M
T \Ft-ASt-ALEE

RIRBAIETE )
E?E?mf]#_/(%f

FREE - EBRERMEERNAT
EHRERTB O BEREE -

SFEIEEMERRBITHRY AEIE 1,879,000
E(ZZT—+F : k254,274,000 7T) ©

%i REMAEERERRRMER

@HE’W&?E? AT 8URRE A
B%ﬁAxﬁj*’LﬁA#&iHﬂﬂEE’J/\ﬁTﬁéﬁ
B MAAEMBRTNZEMETE -

o LNBLIR FiF 4 0.25%  BIEZEEF
BEEBIEINIL% (2T —+F
41%) °

o  WNBLIREK FFH0.25% - BIEFEE A
EEBH P41 % (T —+F:
3.8%) o

o WAIRE EF0.25% - BIEZEEF
EEBIEIN25%(—ZF —+F:
2.5%) o

o  MMBMRAMTEHS G IN—F -
BIERERAETHILIN3. 7% (=ZF
—+4F :3.3%) °

EXRINGERESNAGELTRERTE
%E?E%UEEE’J%B’?@@J ARETERE
AIRE B AHRARE - BB BRR T AAIREE AL
EAEWETE”*“EdiE“@J

25 ERBRESNE - EREEMNET
Wﬁ@E%iﬁ%ﬂﬂﬂiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ{ﬁ%ﬁﬁ
RASER B - FFERGE MBI RHRE
TR Eﬁm%ﬁﬁa%lﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁtﬁ/f

- \F+_A=+—BEHERMNE
ENFEHHRRI8F(ZF—LF:16
F)e

—E-N\F+A=+—8" ' r5EBHE
HARA R 2R 1218 A 1A E 2848 F & 2B
784,000% 7L ( ==& — £ 4 : 807,000
7'EM\T>/\°
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26. BANK BORROWINGS 26. $RATIERK
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
US$'000 US$'000
FEx FET
Bank borrowings comprise: WITENELE -
Bank loans RITER 261,026 411,841
Bank import loans RITHEOER 170,951 114,458
Bank overdrafts RITEX [ 2,435 4,025
|
I
: 434,412 530,324
!
Analysed as: DA s
Secured Vo g 2,210 3,171
Unsecured i 432,202 527,153
434,412 530,324
The carrying amounts of BRERMERSERLAT
loans are repayable:
Within one year —&FR - 9,000
More than one year but not more —F U ERFEAA
than two years - 9,000
More than two years but not more MF A _EBRF AR
than five years - 14,000
- 32,000
The carrying amounts of loans that contain  Fff#51% Z K E R IR AE R
a repayment on demand clause are FREERMERINT
repayable: :
Within one year —FR 352,807 | 237,055
More than one year but not more —F L EEMELRA ]
than two years 52,752 : 179,267
More than two years but not more AF A EBRF AR :
than five years 28,853 82,002
434,412 498,324
Less: Amounts due within one year shown & : RRBI B & T5I/REY
under current liabilities —FRNE|EAFIE (434,412) (5607,324)
Amounts shown under non-current liabilities R IERENEE N F/RAYFIE - 23,000

,--------------------------------------

The effective interest rates (which are also equal to contracted
interest rates) of the Group's variable-rate borrowings range from
2.03% t0 5.13% (2017: 0.66% to 5.00%) per annum.

KEBEEFRERNERFERR (%
RETHIRR) N R2.03% E5.13% (=
—+% :0.66% E5.00%) °
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27. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

2]. STESERTE

(a) Foreign currency exchange contracts (a) SMNEEH
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
US$'000 US$'000
SFEEo FET
Derivative financial liabilities MTESmAaE
Foreign currency exchange contracts  9ME& %Y 7,462 -

The major components of the foreign currency exchange
contracts at 31 December 2018 are as follows:

Notional amount

BREH

N=E—\E+= A=+ RHE
BNHEBERBHWT :

Currency conversion

E¥Hk

17 contracts to sell US$170,000,000 in total (note)
1710 A %4 £ H £ 170,000,000 =7t (B 5E)

US$1:RMB6.4213-RMB6.8990
1370 AR#6.4213 TE AR 6.8990 7T

Note: The contracts will mature within 1 year at the end of the reporting
period.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, net fair value
losses of foreign currency exchange contracts of
approximately US$7,340,000 (2017: nil) were recognised
directly in profit or loss.

(b) Call and put options on investment in a

subsidiary

Pursuant to a joint venture agreement dated 3 March 2010
made between SL Global Pte. Ltd. ("SLG"), a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Group, and other non-controlling
shareholders of Texwell Global Pte Ltd ("“TWG"), a non-
wholly owned subsidiary of SLG, SLG was granted a call
option at nil consideration, giving SLG the right to acquire
the remaining 49% equity interest in TWG at a pre-
determined consideration at any time on and from 30 June
2011.

The other non-controlling shareholders of TWG were
granted a put option at nil consideration to dispose of their
equity interests in TWG to SLG at a pre-determined
consideration on and from 30 June 2015.

(b)

FIEE : BHOBRIERR 1 FREH -

HE-_ZT-N\F+-A=+—8I
FE - INEAHNATFEEBEFE
#97,340,000E T ( = T — £ F
D)HEERBRER -

R—EHE L aRER RS
REBLHI#E

8 4% SL Global Pte. Ltd. ([SLG])
(FEEM2ERNBAA) &
Texwell Global Pte Ltd ([TWG])
(SLGHFEREM B AR KA IERE
RV BHR T —2F=
A=B®& &M SLGAZERE
EEREHE BTSLcEZZ
——FXNA=ZTHRBEELAEER
BEUFETWGH 8249% ARIERIHEF o

TWGE R R AT EE
RRAHE  MBE-FT—AF <A
=+ HBRELEERERSLG H
EHNTWG HIRAE -

N e - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 6 -
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27. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

(b)

Call and put options on investment in a
subsidiary (Continued)

On 2 March 2017, SLG entered into a share purchase
agreement to acquire the remaining 49% equity interest in
TWG. Pursuant to the share purchase agreement, SLG and
the non-controlling shareholders of TWG agreed to
terminate the joint venture agreement, including the call
and put options. The derivative financial asset of
US$1,648,000 was derecognised and charged to profit or
loss during the year ended 31 December 2017.

28. AMOUNT DUE FROM (TO) AN ASSOCIATE

The amount due from (to) an associate is trade in nature,
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED COMPANIES
At 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group had balances with
the following related companies:

29.

27. PTE SR T B )

(b) R —EHE R EIRE R IE

28.

29.

REBGEI#E (%)
M-E—+F=A=H  SLGFIZ
— IR R e AUREETWGH T
49% A% AE - RIEMER M - SLG &
TWGHIEIER I RRER A&
gk BRERERALEE - HE
—E—+HF+-_A=Z+—BHLHF
B BE1,648000ETHHTES
MEED TRIEFERIT A IBEAN
% o

FEUL (FEAY) Bt R R FRIR
HE () B A TR SIE -
BEIEM - %A RRERHEE -

kN

I8

RZE—NFR_ZFT—+F+=A
=+—H  AEEETHEE QR ZME

BiEH
S -
: 2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
US$’000 ! US$'000
SEEH FET
Amounts due from related FEUR B ES A R FRIE (FEEE) :
companies (note i) |
Fellow subsidiaries SESLN)SPNG] 518 1,011
Companies controlled by certain RATIETFTESES
directors of the Company (note ii) #A B (BT EEii) H 215 217
733 1| 1,228
Notes: BT -

(i)

(ii)

Included in the amounts due from related companies, US$212,000 (2017:
US$705,000) are trade in nature, unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand. The maximum balances during the current year are US$1,667,000
(2017: US$705,000). The remaining balances of US$521,000 (2017:
US$523,000) are non-trade in nature, unsecured, interest-free and repayable
on demand.

Certain directors of the Company, namely Mr. LO Lok Fung Kenneth, Mrs.
LO CHOY Yuk Ching Yvonne and Mr. LO Ching Leung Andrew, have
significant influence in these companies.

(i)

(ii)

s AFE U B A B FIE/) 212,000 £ T (=8
—+4 :705,000% ) BE SHHEH - BEIK
W RERNEREER AFEHRSEH
#1,667,000% 7L ( =% —+ 4 : 705,000
JL ) B #8521,000% (=T — £ &
523,000%T) B EHIHE - AEEE - &
BRHERESEE -

ARRETER(RELRSLE  BHEEBX
ITREESEE)RZSRARABRBERATE
o
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30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

Share Award Scheme B

The Company adopted the share award scheme (“Share Award
Scheme B") pursuant to a written resolution passed in April
2017, which approved the Company appointing an independent
professional trustee (the “"Trustee”) to assist with the
administration and vesting of the share awards. The purpose of
Share Award Scheme B is to incentivise the Group's executives,
consultants or officers to contribute to the Group, to retain and
motivate skilled and experienced personnel and to incentivise
them to strive for the future development of the Group by
providing them with the opportunity to own equity in the
Company.

Share Award Scheme B is valid and effective for a period of ten
years, commencing from the date of the first grant of shares
under the scheme. During the year ended 31 December 2017,
13,062,000 shares were granted to 93 persons eligible under
Share Award Scheme B. No consideration was paid by the
grantees for the grant of the incentive shares. When the selected
person has fulfilled the condition of service period specified in
Share Award Scheme B, the Trustee shall transfer the relevant
incentive shares to that eligible person.

Details of specific categories of share awards are as follows:

Number of shares

30.

Date of grant

R HERINRRS
R 17 52 By =T #1B

ARRREBE-_T—LFHARBH—IE
EMRBERRMAB ) LB 8 (RO R
BB HEARRAEZE—RBEIL
BEXTATZFEAD - ABh i 88
B EREMEE - I R EIBA B
MERABASETHRAL BERZG
ABMEBA/AKEELER  BELE
AR KBEEABMEBARERM
RARNRBBRENEEHE RS RAE
BRRRERS N

B EETEBEMBATF - BRIE
ZtEEAREROE ARG - BEZ
Z—+tF+_RA=F+T—HLFE"
13,062,000 % 17 B2 % T 93 & % 10 #EED
SFEIBTABRAL - ARAWERT
AR AR () SZAT(E - BEE AT ES
A% 7 82 ET 81 B AT AT BA AR 755 B Rl A0 16k 1
B XBABRZEEBATEEAH
R ©

FrE SRR D SRR RO FEIB A S

Vesting date

R EE REBH FEAM
First tranche 4,754,000 11 October 2017 3 November 2017
it —E—+F+A+—H —E—+tF+—HA=H
Second tranche 4,154,000 11 October 2017 3 November 2018
g8 —E—+F+HA+—H —E2-N\F+—H=H
Third tranche 4,154,000 11 October 2017 3 November 2019
Bt —E—+F+A+—H —E-NF+—A=H

.------------------------------------------------------\
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30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 30. LR AEBNNRRS

(Continued)

Share Award Scheme B (Continued)

The estimated fair values of the share awards granted at 11
October 2017 amounted to approximately US$9,864,000.

The following table discloses movements of the share awards

(#8)
KRG ER 8B (#)
R-E—tF+ AT BRERN £

B R ET A B4 59,864,000 E 7T ©

TREFERSRERD LR EIBATH

held by employees under Share Award Scheme B: R& 15 2E B HY =t

Granted Vested Outstanding Lapsed Vested Outstanding
at during at during during at
11.10.2017 the year 31.12.2017 the year the year 31.12.2018
R=Z-t& R=ZB-tf RZZ-N\&
+At-H +=B=+-8 +T=R=+-8H
& ERBE B RATRE FREN FRER R AT

(Note)

i3]
First tranche 24 4,754,000 (4,754,000) - - - -
Second tranche i 4,154,000 - 4,154,000 (107,500) (4,046,500) -
Third tranche F=4t 4,154,000 - 4,154,000 (189,000 - 3,965,000
13,062,000 (4,754,000) 8,308,000 (296,500) (4,046,500) 3,965,000

Note: 10 eligible participants (2017: nil), who were granted share awards ceased to
become eligible participants upon termination of employment and those
share awards automatically lapsed.

M 10 ERRNEBNAERSEE(ZT
—tF B)DERLERBESTERAE
RemE MRS E/ITEAERY -
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30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

Share Award Scheme B (Continued)

The fair value of the awarded shares was measured at the
estimated market price of the Company’s shares, adjusted for
the restriction on transfer, disposal and sales for a certain period
of time. The inputs used in the fair value measurement were as

30. U AEBNNARKZS

(%)

KRG ER 8B (#)

BER OB A FEZARFR DG
MmEE  UMRNE THRNEE - H
ERHEERBIELFE - AFEEMN
RAMEABEDT

follows:

First tranche

Second tranche

Third tranche

E—#t ETHt E=Ht
Estimated market price HK$7.89 HK$7.89 HK$7.89
fhEtm{E 7.89% 7T 7.898 7T 7.8978 7T
Number of shares 4,754,000 4,154,000 4,154,000

Eegharig=
Vesting date
7 B H

Total restrictive period
HER I BR A
Expected volatility
TR IR
Risk-free rate

R |
Expected dividend yield

3 November 2017
—T—tF+—HA=H
3 years

3F

33.8%

1.3%

1.7%

3 November 2018

3 November 2019

—N\F+—A=H —ET-NF+—A=H
4 years 5 years

45 54

33.9% 34.4%

1.4% 1.5%

1.7% 1.7%

TEHAAR B L 25 2

The risk-free rate is based on the yield of Hong Kong Government
Bonds.

Expected volatility was determined by using average daily
volatilities of comparable companies with a tenure
commensurate with the restrictive period.

The Group recognised the total expense of US$3,940,000 (2017:
US$4,487,000) for the year ended 31 December 2018 relating to
the share awards under Share Award Scheme B granted by the
Company.

RBMEDEREABAES Ra X
et -

BHNERAAELRARNFEER
KIEEETE - FHIEZ R BMEEE

rEBREE_E—N\F+_A=1+—
B IEF SR B AR 7% R B R
FFEIBTHRMDEE BN 25
3,940,000 T (==& —+4F : 4,487,000
ETT) °
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31. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 31.

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as going concerns while B RIEFERAEEEIEFERIRA
maximising the return to the shareholders through the careful R AERRAIERZ AL R - NEFRE
management of the debt to equity ratio. The Group's overall EXEOBTFEERRETE -
strategy remains unchanged from prior years.

BEXREREE
AREEREL  RRAREEBTH

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
includes the borrowings disclosed in note 26, less bank balances
and cash and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital, reserves and retained profits.

AEENEAZEERFEB(RENE
26 BENET)  MRITEHR LIRS AR
AARBEAEANEGEEDZ(BREDETR
A R REEN) AR

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a
regular basis.

ARRRBFTEPRFTEANRE -

,-----------------------------------------------
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 32. €@ T A
32a. Categories of financial instruments 32a. 2@ T AEF
2018 2017
—E-N\F —FtF
US$'000 US$'000
FEx FET
Financial assets TRMEE
Financial assets at amortised cost REEN TR SREE 636,277 -
Trade receivables at FVTOCI RATFEFAEMEZERA
BE 5 REIKIE 10,697 -
Loans and receivables (including cash ER&EKZIE (BEREE R
and cash equivalents) REEED) = 753,368
Financial liabilities cRIBE
Derivative financial liabilities PTESREE 7,462 -
Financial liabilities at amortised cost IR A IR S R B E 802,455 860,261

32b.Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group's major financial instruments include trade, bills
and other receivables, trade receivables at FVTOCI,
amounts due from an associate/related companies, loan
receivables, bank balances and cash, trade, bills and other
payables, amount due to an associate, derivative financial
instruments and bank borrowings. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with certain of these financial instruments and
the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out
below. Management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are

implemented in a timely and effective manner.

———————————

32b. IR EEEERBE

AEENTESRTABREE SR
WA -~ BRI Nt FE R
B RAHER ARG EEKRAL
B REFR - S AF,
BRRIFOR - BRER - RITHER
ERE BHENTEA  BNRE
R LA FEAT IR - eSSBS & R B K
B TESRITAURRITER -
ZETRTANFBERERERM
de BETZEERIAAHNE
@ ROBRZERRIBRENT
X BEEREEMEEZEFRR
FER N B B R A IR B HE 06
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued
32b.Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)
Market risk

(i)

Currency risk

Several entities in the Group have foreign currency
sales and purchases, which expose the Group to
significant foreign currency risk.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s significant

32. €RLT B )

32b. IR EEEER K

(&)

WS AR
(i) E¥Em@EEZ
AEBETE B & A

B
EFHE SAKBEHEHEBREAN
SNEE LB

AREERREARUERE

foreign currency denominated monetary assets and ErEEAGEFENE R
monetary liabilities at the reporting date are as EBREENT :
follows:
Liabilities Assets
______ =F BE
2018 2017 2018 2017
“E-N\F | ZF—+F | ZE-N\F | ZFT—+F
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
e FET SFEEm FET
HK$ BT 267 465 16,048 19,424
Renminbi (“RMB") AR 3 19 21,132 1,289

The management of the Group monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign exchange exposure should the
need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to the fluctuations in the
HK$ and the RMB. The foreign currency risk of the
HK$ is not significant as the HK$ is pegged to the
USS.

RN E IR E BB HME L
WA 7 2 8 E RSN E R
5155 B LR o

BBE A
AEBEIEEHELRAR
B RR o S T B
S THME BB T ME R
BATEA -
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
32b.Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a
5% increase and decrease in the RMB against the
US$. 5% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting
foreign currency risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment
of the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange
rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only
outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary
items and adjusts their translation at the year end for
a 5% change in foreign currency rates. The sensitivity
analysis includes bank balances, trade, bills and other
receivables and trade, bills and other payables in the
RMB which is not the functional currency of the
relevant group entities. A positive number below
indicates an increase in profit where the US$
weakens 5% against the RMB. For a 5%
strengthening of the US$ against the RMB, there
would be a comparable impact on the Group's post-
tax profit and the balances below would be negative.

32. €RLT B )
32b. KRR EEEERBEK

(&)

mSER (E)

(i)

E¥mEpE (E)
BRE DT (88)
TRHAVAEEHARKY
ELAEKEEL% K K
[EFH1E - 6% AT EERA
B 23RNSR R B B A
MEURELL R TRKREE
[E $§ /N IE B SR ] BE 5 1R B B
HFEh - BRESTERRE
LASNES ST B R 1 R S 4 & 8
TEE - P AR B DASNES (B
5% 1EME X T - HUX
B BEAARE (I IEH
BHEEEREEEE)HEN
IBITHE SR - B B EWFOE -
JE UK 2= 4 R HL A 7 Uk 3k IE A
MEZEMNRE BHER
N E b FEATFRIE - FFIIEH
RRETLHAREEESS
B - SmAIE AN - BEITH A
REFEL% - @ AL
BB RMNEETLFE
MATESREAEE -

2"‘:'&

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—+F

US$'000 ! US$'000

| SFEEou FET

Post-tax profit BTt 1855 F 882 53
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MBHmRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HE—Z—N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

32b.Financial risk management objectives and

32. €RLT B )
32b. IR EEEER K

policies (Continued) (%)
Market risk (Continued) s Ak (&)
(i) Currency risk (Continued) (i) EBEEERE)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued) BRREDT (&)
For the foreign currency exchange contracts (see TLONE A (R M E27) ™
note 27), the sensitivity analysis was estimated based =S BRRESWNLIRER =
on the contracts outstanding at 31 December 2018. If E-NE+-B=+—HK
the forward exchange rate of the US$ against the FERAELEET - METRE
RMB changed by 5%, the potential effect on the AREHREAERE 5% -
Group's post-tax profit for the year ended 31 HBZE_ZE—-N\F+ A
December 2018 would have been: =t+—HILEFEAREERKRH
BENEEETENAT
2018 \I
—E-N\F
US$'000
e
US$ strengthens against RMB by 5% ENLAAREAHESY%
Decrease in the post-tax profit for the year FEBFIREFR LD (6,463)
US$ weakens against RMB by 5% ETHARBEZES%
Increase in the post-tax profit for the year F RS0 ! 7,143
No foreign currency exchange contracts were entered HE2_ZT—-NF+ = H
into during the year ended 31 December 2018 nor =t+t—BLEFEBEZE
were outstanding at 31 December 2017. M INEES X  R-ZEBE—+5F
+—A=+—BNEXFEE
HNFE S A
(ii) Interest rate risk (ii) FIRE[E

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risks relate
primarily to variable-rate bank balances and bank
borrowings (see notes 21 and 26 for details of these
balances and borrowings). It is the Group's policy to
keep its bank balances and borrowings at floating
rates of interest so as to minimise the interest rate
risk.

AREBENHRSRENXER
TEFNFBRITEHB IR
TTRER (AR E AR M ER
WS F2RANE2 R
26) - AEBMNBRERTE
RIT 48 8k AR FIRF B R
A8 - DUBER E @R -

N e - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - @ -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A ISR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HE—Z— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 32. TR T E
32b.Financial risk management objectives and 32b. B EREE B EREKE
policies (Continued) (%)
Market risk (Continued) iR (%)
(i)  Interest rate risk (Continued) (i) FIEEpE(1E)

The Group's exposure to interest rates on financial
liabilities is detailed in the liquidity risk management
section of this note. The Group's cash flow interest
rate risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of
the Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate, London
Interbank Offered Rate and Singapore Interbank
Offered Rate arising from the Group's bank
borrowings.

Total interest income from financial assets that are
measured at amortised cost is as follows:

AEBE R B ENFXE
BRFLNAM TR E 2R
REE & AEERSR
ENEREBREIEEPRAE
BERITRERELNBEBRTT
FIZEHFE - BBURTTRENR
BN H NS R 1T R 47 B
KE o

RBHRAH BN BEE
A @I -

2018 | 2017
—E-N\EF —E—+F
US$'000 US$'000
TEx FET
Other income ElUg A

Financial assets at amortised cost % # §HA AR DIBR A & RO & 2 4,162 -

Loans and receivables (including BN EWIE (B
bank balances and cash) WITHEHBRIIRE) - 644

Interest expense on financial liabilities not measured

I IR A FEF ARG E

at FVTPL: HEeRmBENSAX
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
US$'000 US$'000
FExT FE=T
Financial liabilities at amortised cost & 4Rk N5 BR Y & Bl & (& 17,859 16,565

> == CRYSTAL INTERNATIONAL GROUP LIMITED S4Bl AR AT mw e e e m o oo e oo m oo oo oo oo oo
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZE—

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
32b.Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(ii)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for non-
derivative instruments at the end of the reporting
period. The analysis is prepared assuming these
financial instruments outstanding at the end of the
respective reporting period were outstanding for the
whole year. A 0.5% (2017: 0.5%) increase or
decrease in interest rate is used when reporting
interest rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment
of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.
The exposure to the interest rate risk for variable-rate
bank balances is insignificant and therefore the
sensitivity analysis is not presented.

If interest rates had been 0.5% (2017: 0.5%) higher/
lower and all other variables were held constant, the
Group's post-tax profit for the year ended 31
December 2018 would decrease/increase by
approximately US$1,499,000 (2017: US$2,085,000).
This is mainly attributable to the Group's exposure to
interest rates on its variable-rate bank borrowings.

iR e B RS R M
T \ET-AEt—ALEE

32. €RLT B )
32b. IR EEEER K

(&)

mSER (E)

(ii)

FIEmE B (E)

BURRE DT

AT RRE DT HERIELT
ETARE i&iﬁﬁﬂiﬁﬁﬁﬁ
MFIERE R MEE - DD
BRENEERSHRNZE
ABTERIAREEFE
MABITMHAER - ERAEE
BB AB A2 HFERR
RRA0L%(ZE —+F
0.5%) WL FIEE - WRK
EREHMNEAEEIEE

RFEE - 2 BIRT1TA %%%
THRMERBHTRE - W

I & 2 HRE DT

HFIR EFTF405% (=
T—+tF:05%) MATAH
EmEEsREFETE  KEE
HE_ZT—-—N\HF+=A
=t+—HIFENREER
F &8 # hN#49 1,499,000
FET(=F—+4 : 2,085,000
E) c BEXERARALE
EF BUER 1T & F M A& X R &
[R\Bx o
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HE—Z— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

32b.Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

At 31 December 2018, the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk, which could cause a financial loss to the Group
due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties, arises from the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position. The Group
does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements
to cover its credit risks associated with its financial assets.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team to be responsible for credit
approvals and to ensure other monitoring procedures are in
place to initiate follow-up action to recover overdue debts.
In addition, the Group assesses impairment under the ECL
model upon application of IFRS 9 (2017: incurred loss
model) on trade balances individually. In this regard, the
directors of the Company consider that the Group's credit
risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risks on bank balances are limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned
by international credit-rating agencies.

The management of the Group considers that the credit
risk on amounts due from an associate/related companies
is limited because they can closely monitor the repayment
of the associate and the related companies.

At 31 December 2018, trade receivables from the five
largest customers represent approximately 68.7% (2017:
68.5%) of the Group’s total trade receivables.

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid funds
which are deposited with several banks with high credit
ratings, the Group does not have any other significant
concentration of credit risk. Trade receivables consist of a
large number of customers that are spread across diverse
geographical areas.

32. €RLT B )
32b. KRR EEEERBEK

(&)

FERBKRERE
RZZ-N\E+-_A=+—HB &
SEAZNARZHF RETED
EAEEER P BERRNRAEH
Rk - TREARE MBI KRR
FAOHREREENKR@E - ~%
By ESBEMERARIEMBEER
EaEEAMEEESREER
HEERER -

REARREERRR AEEE
EEERk— @M MEEERE
B WHIFTEMERER - AR
REVREITB R OB BES - It
S ARE BN FE P BRI R B 7 5
AF KR BIERAEEEBRA
—TtF CELABEEREN)E
R E S ERETRER A - B
o ARREFRS  ARENE
BERBEKARIE -

RITEBNERERRER - REZ
RHHFREBREEFEHER
TREEFRNRIT -

AEBEEERSERBZ A
B/ B ARREANEERRE
R RERE A B ERYE QA
K BRBE R BIHE BN ©

RZZB—-N\E+_A=+—H0 &
ABEFMEZBWRIBEAEEE
SEW K TBEELNEE TN (ZF
—+t4F :685%) °

RIS B IS B AR R TR
BESEERAREROERI A
S E TR EA R E AR E
R - BB RNKEREA IS
HTRBENES -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MBHmRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ—_Z— \F+_A=+—HItFE

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

32b.Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The Group's internal credit risk grading assessment
comprises the following categories:

32. €RLT B )
32b. IR EEEER K

(%)

EERBRRBETE (E)
REBMHANBEERBRIRTEE
FELATHER

Category Description Trade receivables Other financial assets
Ehl g g S EWFIE HitemEE
Performing The counterparty has a low risk of default Lifetime ECL 12-month ECL
and has no past due amounts — not credit-impaired
B4 HFAELNRBRE  SWEFEER KATEHREEER 12{@AEBEEER
—EGERNE
Doubtful There has been a significant increase in Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
credit since initial recognition — not credit-impaired — not credit-impaired
iR S E R B HERIA R K IEIE N KATEHEEEE KABEHEEEER
—RESHEAE — RESHE
In default There is evidence indicating that the asset Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
is credit-impaired — credit-impaired — credit-impaired
EQ BEREBETEAEHREERHE KATEHEEEE KATEHEEEER
— EERE — E8HE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor ~ Amount is written off Amount is written off
is in severe financial difficulty and the
Group has no realistic prospect of recovery
k! BEERETEBSARBRENBNE - MEARERE WHEBEHE

A SEE RN AA gL

The estimated loss rates are determined based on historical
observed default rates over the expected lives of the
debtors and are adjusted for forward-looking information,
including but not limited to the expected growth rate of the
industry, that is available without undue cost or effort.

For trade receivables, the Group has applied the simplified
approach in IFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance at
lifetime ECL. Trade receivables are assessed individually for
impairment allowance based on the historical credit losses
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment
of both the current as well as the forecast direction of
conditions at the end of the reporting period, including the
time value of money where appropriate.

B IE R R REE BT R
MBTERENXREE  WHHEA
B2 R AL SN AT ES R AT
EMHERHERAE  BEERRM
ITHTEEHRER -

AEZRWFEME  AREER
BR A 75 o o5 Y R 26 9 SR 0K %
KATEEMEERIBRT B BRI
B o R FIAEREEEEEEERC
LR EE R E R - WHES
ABERE - BEKEMNIA KLY
s B HIE AR A R DA R R
KAV TEAEL R - BiEEE
RrEEE(Em) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A ISR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HE—Z— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
32b.Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

In determining the ECL for trade receivables at FVTOCI,
bills and other receivables and loan receivables, the
management of the Group has taken into account the
historical default experience and forward-looking
information, as appropriate, for example, the Group has
considered the consistently low historical default rate in
connection with payments, and concluded that credit risk
inherent in the Group’'s outstanding trade receivables at
FVTOCI, other receivables and loan receivables are

32. €RLT B )
32b. KRR EEEERBEK

(%)

15 8 E B OB B 3P4 ()

RE TR A TES A2 ERA
B 5 REURTE RN I R E A
FEWZIEIA R BN SR TEEE
FiER  AEEEEEDEEAT
B RATEE SR (i) -
FlmnAEED = EEBNZNBE
BHNE—ERE  TRANEME
AFEEE A2 EWRA L K EE
B 5 FENCERIE - fth JE UK B % FE

insignificant. WERNEBEERBRILTERK -
Gross
Internal 12-month or carrying
2018 Note credit rating Lifetime ECL amount
128 A KA
—E-N\F Mz REHEEFHR FEAHREEESSE AR AAE
US$'000
FER
Trade receivables 19 Performing Lifetime ECL 272,711
— not credit-impaired
B 5 M RIA ) KATRHEEEE
— BEERE
Trade receivables at FVTOCI 20 Performing 12m ECL 10,697
BRATHEFAHMEER AL FB#) 12 @ A EEEE
B 5 RIE
Bills and other receivables 19 Performing 12m ECL 57,972
W R4 I B Ath JE W SR IE R 1218 AFEEAE B E 18
Loan receivables 17 Performing 12m ECL 2,535
e E K B#) 12 AfeEEEE
Amounts due from related companies 29 Performing 12m ECL 733
JE L BB N Bl RIE EES) 12 @ AEHEEERE
Bank balances 21 Performing 12m ECL 302,326
RITREER B4 12 @ AT EEEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MBHmRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HE—Z—N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

32b.Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group's
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. Management monitors the utilisation of bank
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The Group relies on bank borrowings as significant sources
of liquidity, details of which are set out in note 26.

The following table details the Group's remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities.
The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date
on which the Group can be required to pay. Specifically,
bank loans with a repayment on demand clause are
included in the earliest time band regardless of the
probability of the banks not choosing to exercise their rights
within one year after the end of the reporting period. The
maturity analysis for other non-derivative financial liabilities
is based on the scheduled repayment dates.

The table includes both interest and principal cash flows.
To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from the interest rate
curve at the end of the reporting period.

32. €RLT B )
32b. IR EEEER K

(&)

ERRBETEARE  AEEER
WHFHEEERREABNANEE
REMBONRERREEEY X
BMEREREBNTE - BEES
EIRTTREANER LERETER
2K -

AEBERBERITIEFIERRBES
MBEERIR - FIEHNHE26

TRHAVAEEITESRAERN
BT AMBBMFR - ZRDIREAR
SEMRERERNRF AR
RemMABNRBRARASRES
8o LEE - BEARERERIGR
MIRITEFEHARERREER - T
WIRITES A EEERNRE KRR
—FRITEEERN - RMIETES
MAEENIHAONHENEEE
KB -

7/

ZREEMNERAERERE © fd
MERER/ZEME - ARERS
BRRENRERROM KEHL o
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 32. TR T E
32b.Financial risk management objectives and 32b. B EREE B EREKE
policies (Continued) (%)
Liquidity risk (Continued) REESER (&)
In addition, the following table details the Group's liquidity Hoh s TREFMAEBFBITES
analysis for its derivative financial instruments. The table MTEMREESDIT - TRIIR
has been drawn up based on the undiscounted contractual BUAOFRBEELEAITA T A RE
net cash (inflows) and outflows of derivative instruments WEHNRS (AR ARE FER
that settle on a net basis. The liquidity analysis for the gl REBNAESM T ENTREE
Group's derivative financial instruments is prepared based SOMIIBESHORNEBERES - R
on the contractual maturities as the management considers HAESEERAES AT HH H IR
that the contractual maturities are essential for an PETEBRS RENEHZHmS
understanding of the timing of the cash flows of BNE o
derivatives.
2018 —EB-N\#F
Weighted Carrying \I
average  Ondemand 4 months Total amount
effective ~ or less than 23 to Over undiscounted at
interest rate 1 month months 1 year 1 year cash flows 3112.2018
RZZ-NE !
METES ESE] 48R ABBEE T-A=1-A
Epf= SR1fEA 223{8R Z1F FE@1E itk MEEE
% US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 Uss$'000 US$'000
% i Tin T TEn i i
Non-derivative HTESRER
financial liabilities
Trade, bills and other BHEMTE  ENEE
payables REMERTE = 269,546 63,880 26,594 4,416 364,436 364,436 1
Amount due to B EAAE
an associate - 3,607 - - - 3,607 3,607
Bank borrowings HFTER
— variable rate —FHHE 36 434412 - - - 434,412 434412
707,565 63,880 25% 4416 802,455 802455
Derivatives-net fiET8 - FHLE I
settlement
Forsign currency MHERY
exchange contracts : - 661 1312 5,489 - 7,462 7,462
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

32b.Financial risk management objectives and

32. €RLT B )
32b. IR EEEER K

policies (Continued) (&)
Liquidity risk (Continued) REESERE (&)
2017 R=B—tF
Weighted
average On demand Total Carrying
effective or less than -3 4months to QOver  undiscounted amount at
interest rate 1 month months 1 year 1 year cash flows 31.12.2017
RIE-tF
TS Feyen AERE TZA=T-H

ERHE  SMER 23R 4EREIE ek REAE A
% Us§000 US§000 Us§1000 US§ 000 US§ 000 US§ 000
% 5 THI T3 TR Tin T

Non-derivative HTEERER
financial liabilities
Trade, bills and other BHEMNE  BREER
payables HfEfisg - 171,735 103,407 45862 8933 329937 329937
Bank borrowings BIER
— variable rate — FERE 30 498,324 4518 4590 24,994 530,426 530,324
670,059 107,925 50,452 3927 862,363 860,261

Bank loans with a repayment on demand clause are B BRENEFTIERNIRITERRET

included in the “on demand or less than 1 month"” time
band in the above maturity analysis. The aggregate
undiscounted principal amounts of these bank loans
amounted to approximately US$434,412,000 at 31
December 2018 (2017: US$498,324,000). Taking into
account the Group's financial position, the directors of the
Company do not believe that it is probable that the banks
will exercise their discretionary rights to demand immediate
repayment. The directors of the Company believe that such
bank loans will be repaid after the end of the reporting
period in accordance with the scheduled repayment dates
set out in the loan agreements, details of which are set out
in the table below.

A BB B 47 [ Esksk DR
1MEA)HEE - RZZFE—NF
+-B=1+—8 " ZSRTEZN
RAGIR AR & B FE 4 5 434,412,000
EIL(ZZF—+ 1 1 498,324,000
TL) o K8 E RAEE B AR
ARAREERABIT A REITHFH
ERIBERNBIBEF o XA F]
EERAE  ZERTERBREER
i ATETE B 2 H R RS A
RIBEE  FBERTE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ—-Z— \F+_A=+—HILtFE

©

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 32. TR T E
32b.Financial risk management objectives and 32b. B EREE B EREKE
policies (Continued) (%)
Liquidity risk (Continued) FEBESERE (8)

Maturity Analysis-Bank borrowings with a repayment
on demand clause based on scheduled repayments

i HHEAH - Zer BB WASEEXERKINETER

On demand Total 1
or less than 1-3 3 months to 1-2 2-5 undiscounted Carrying |
1 month months 1 year years years cash outflow amount

RERY FERRE

HSM{ER 12387 3AZ1%E 122F 2B5% i HE
| USs'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
T£x T£x T£x T£n T£n T£7n T£7n

2018 —E-N\E 63,171 73,630 151,460 106,579 53,016 447,856 434,412
2017 “E—+F 12,841 62,851 165,224 187,845 91,158 519,919 498,324
The amounts included above for variable interest rate 2B R EREZENREHRET
instruments within the non-derivative financial liabilities are REFT AR IR ZR - EaliIENTAE
subject to change if changes in variable interest rates differ TRAENIPANERTAEES
from those estimates of interest rates determined at the & o

end of the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HE—Z—N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued 32. @R T R
32c¢. Fair value measurements of financial 32c. =@ T A\ FEFE
instruments
This note provides information about how the Group A FIREEAAERNAETS
determines fair values of financial assets and financial MEENESRHBEAFEENEE -
liabilities.
() Fair values of the Group's financial assets and (i EEEEEUAFETED

financial liabilities that are measured at fair value on a
recurring basis

Some of the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities are measured at fair value at the end of the
reporting period. The following table gives information
about how the fair values of these financial assets
and financial liabilities are determined (in particular,
the valuation techniques and key inputs used).

| Fair value hierarchy

AREEREERDBARE
AFE

RBEHMR AKERDE
REEMTRAEBRRAFE
AR TREHZFERE
EReRBENNEEAF
ENER (CERAERAGE
Bk EZHABRE)

Fair value hierarchy

at 31 December 2018 at 31 December 2017
RZB-NEtZA=t-H | RZ5—tE+-A=1+—H
WATFEER WATEER
Valuation
techniques
Level 2 Total | Level2 Total and key inputs
[BERITR
EZER by F-ER B IEHAFE
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
S TER | TET e
Financial assets SREE
Trade receivables at FVTOC| BATFEGTAEMZERA
B8 5 lE 10,697 10,697 | - - note (a) Hf5 (a)
Financial liabilities ERER
Foreign currency exchange PRAITEEBEER
contracts classified as derivative ~ SMEA#] |
financial liabilities 7,462 7462 | - - note (b) FIEE (o)
Notes: B
(a) Discounted cash flow. Future cash flows are estimated based (a) BRI ERE - KRKIRERE
on a rate under factoring arrangements. TR IERIZ L HEIE T AR A
ate
(b) Discounted cash flow. Future cash flows are estimated based (b) BRIRIRERE c RKRERE

on forward exchange rates and contracted forward rates,
discounted at a rate that reflects the credit risk of various
counterparties.

There were no transfers into or out of Level 2 during
both years.

Ty IR HAE & R AT 40 iR HiE
i TRERERZEHTF
EERBRE L REER

MEFEMES2EREA

N e - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 6 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KR e B R MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HE—Z— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
32c¢. Fair value measurements of financial

instruments (Continued)

(i)~ For the fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities that are not measured at fair value on a
recurring basis, the directors of the Company consider
that the carrying amounts of financial assets and
financial liabilities recognised in the consolidated
financial statements approximate their fair values.

33. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had capital
commitments as follows:

2. M ITH

(&)

32c. @ T AR FEFE(®)

(ii)

BIEIRFEEE NN FERT
ENCRHEERCBHARER
FEARBEERE R
RAEVBRERERNEHE
ExemaENEmERER

33.

AFEEE -

BIANEYE

RBEIR - AEREE A TEARLE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —tF
US$'000 US$'000
SEEI R FE7T
Contracted for but not provided for in KRR RERP U
the consolidated financial statements in &= MR B D T 4B R EE
relation to the acquisition of property,
plant and equipment 61,525 52,647
34. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS Z%ﬁ*ﬂﬁﬁ@ﬁ
R -
| 2018 2017
—E-NF —+tF
US$'000 US$'000
TEx FET
The Group as lessee AEBEREEA
Lease payments paid under operating FRAFATSERBELEHE
leases during the year in respect of: YREEK
Land and buildings T RIETF 13,998 12,503
Plant and machinery 5 K es 1,030 919
15,028 13,422
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34. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had outstanding
commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases which would fall due as follows:

J~J~
4, &K=&

HEAE®

RBEHR - ARETAHEEEHE
TR SEHEE KA R BEITAIER
AT EARR B8

:l 2018 2017
: —E-NF —tF
: US$'000 US$000
! FEx FET
|
Land and buildings i REF :
— Within one year ——FR s 10,238 10,985
— In the second to fifth year inclusive —FEFRF
(BHEEREMF) 16,295 15,641
— Over five years — BBRAF 148 3,374
26,681 30,000
Plant and machinery B & e Es
— Within one year ——&FnR 648 598
— In the second to fifth year inclusive — E_FERFERE :
(BREEEMF) 53 | 820
|
701 1,418
27,382 31,418

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group for certain of its land and buildings, office properties and
machinery. Leases are negotiated for a term of 1 to 30 years and
rentals are fixed for a term of 1 to 30 years.

GEAENREEEEREET LR

BT WMAEWMELRKBEMNOES -

MHRFH—E=1F2

-

)

;A

E-HFNFEHER -

M

N e - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 6 -
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(&)

35. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 3. BEEEH
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the following RBEERR KEBBUTEEERET
assets pledged to banks as securities for general banking W17 RS AREFEEES —RIIBITR
facilities granted to the Group: &
(T -
: 2018 2017
: —E-N\F ZE—+F
: US$'000 : US$'000
TEx FET
Property, plant and equipment (note 11) ¥ - & &8 (HHEE11) 10,303 12,835
Inventories (note 18) 78 (f45E18) 5,374 8,100
Trade receivables (note 19) B 5 ERGOE (H5E19) 30,037 31,781
45,714 52,716
36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36. Bk S X5
(a) Related party transactions (a) BBHAEXS
During the year, the Group entered into transactions with FAREBEDFT LA TR
the following related parties: Z
N : L )
Relationship Nature of transaction : 2018 2017
RS REME : —E-NE —E—+tF
! US$000 US$'000
SEEH FET
Fellow subsidiaries Rentals paid 1,830 1,841
GES )P [EAREitkn
Management fee received 264 513
BRERSE !
Subcontracting income 2,402 199
2R PN
Equipment leasing expenses : 500 25
BEAERY '
An associate Purchase of materials 15,366 6,671
/N BEEME
Claims received 94 589
BWEE
Companies controlled by certain Rentals paid 1,294 1,205
directors of the Company (note) Z N4
AARETESESM AR (M) Handling fee received 32 | 20
BWFESR
Note: Certain directors of the Company, namely Mr. LO Lok Fung Kenneth, ik : AARETESES(BLRLE B
Mrs. LO CHOY Yuk Ching Yvonne and Mr. LO Ching Leung Andrew, BERBLLIMBERLAE)HZER
have significant influence in these companies. ABERTEN -

> == CRYSTAL INTERNATIONAL GROUP LIMITED S4Bl AR AT mw e e e m o oo e oo m oo oo oo oo oo



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MBHmRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HE—Z—N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

36. BT SRS )

Emoluments of key management personnel (b)) EEEEAENHE
The emoluments of directors, who are also the key FRRBEFATBEEBAENES
management personnel, during the year were as follows: BT -
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
US$'000 US$'000
FTEr FET
Short-term benefits 5 HtR A 5,079 6,556
Post-employment benefits BEER 2R T 97 96
5,176 6,652
The emoluments of directors are recommended to the EEMemnFMEEeLZEEA
Board of Directors by the remuneration committee having KPR E LR TS G EERER
regard to the performance of each individual and EEGEREZE -
comparable market statistics.
Balances with related companies (c) EABFEEL AlRyAgER
The Group's outstanding balances with related companies RZE—N\FER_E—tF+=A
at 31 December 2018 and 2017 are set out in aggregate in =+—A  REEHERFBEARRR
the consolidated statement of financial position and the BEEHETHEAGRETERRE
corresponding note thereto. P A
Commitments with a fellow subsidiary and (d) B2 ZME 2 B KR EH S /Y

related parties

Subsidiaries of the Company entered into several non-
cancellable operating lease arrangements as lessees with a
fellow subsidiary and companies controlled by certain
directors of the Company with lease terms of three years.
The total amount of rental expenses for the year is included
in note 36(a). At 31 December 2018, the Group expects the
total rental expenses to the fellow subsidiary and related
parties under these non-cancellable operating lease
arrangements within one year and in the second to fifth
year to be approximately US$2,206,000 and US$17,000
(2017: US$3,132,000 and US$2,228,000), respectively.

RIE

RARKE AR (EREABEA) HEF
EZMBRRIRARARE TEEER
ARG BB AR CEHE
T HEA=ZF - FRHELSFAX
LEH N E36@) c RZZT—N
F+-A=+—0 KEEEHIE
BZERN—FARE_FEFRE
B E A A B S HE L HERR
R B AT LR T RS 6
B EE D R4 42,206,000 E 7T K&
17,000% 7T( = & — + F:
3,132,000 7T % 2,228,000% 7T ) °

-------------------------------------------------------\

N e - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - @ -



’-------------------------------------------------------

S

(&)

,------------------------------------------

> == CRYSTAL INTERNATIONAL GROUP LIMITED S4Bl AR AT mw e e e m o oo e oo m oo oo oo oo oo
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HE—Z— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 36.
(e) Licence agreement entered into with the

ultimate holding company

The Group has entered into a licence agreement on 20
March 2017 with the ultimate holding company (the
“Licence Agreement”), pursuant to which the ultimate
holding company has agreed to grant to the Group a licence
to use certain trademarks and domain names in connection
with the business and operations in various territories for
three years commencing 1 January 2017 and, where
applicable, to use and/or to refer to the trademark used on
the front and back covers of the prospectus issued by the
Company. The Group paid the ultimate holding company
the sum of HK$1.00 as consideration.

37. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 37.

FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in
the Group's consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows
from financing activities.

A R 5 )

(e) BERAIEM A EZTBIFFAT
%%
W-B—t5=A=1R A%£H
E BRI R TS AT R a#
A ) - B BEEREA
HM&%EH$%IﬁTHmEm
G TR R -
BT —+5—A—BEAH=
R (ER) A R e
AA R FIE R E R HE R
FRMTEIE - AEEDRREER
ATIEA 100 BT AEBIE -

%ﬁ%@ﬁ%iﬁ%%ﬁ
TR AEERAREETHAELRE
WEBFE BREECKFECEH-
METPMELAGERMREIBFLIEE
AEEGERERERME TG
i/}lbimiif//miiiﬁxiﬁ/i\/ﬁgﬁﬁg
AEE -

" At Other At\:

1 January Financing changes 31 December

2018 cash flows (note i) 2018

R=B-N\%F & Hip#® R-Z-NF

-B—H ReRE (Wi +=A=+-H

US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000

SV TER TER S

Bank borrowings (note ii) RATIEF (BN i 526,299 (112,361) 18,039 431,977 |
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37. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 37.

FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (continued)

MEEE FTEESENY
BR (@)

At Other At
1 January Financing changes 31 December
2017 cash flows (note i) 2017
RZE—+4F A Hin @ RZE—t4F
—H—R Bene (MzE) +T=A=+—H
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
TEx TEL T FET
Amount due to ultimate holding B &R D AR
company 118,632 (118,632) - -
Amounts due to related companies  [Ef A R 152 (152) -
Bank borrowings (note ii) RITIER (M uin) 472,136 41,632 12,531 526,299
590,920 (77,152) 12,531 526,299
Notes: BRE -

(i) Other changes include the effect of foreign exchange rate changes and
finance costs recognised for bank borrowings.

(ii) Bank borrowings include bank loans, bank import and export loans. The cash
flows from bank borrowings comprise the net amount of new bank
borrowings raised and repayment of bank borrowings and interest paid.

0] Hib B HBEEXZH T E R RITER
Eﬁﬁwmﬂlﬁ/ﬁZK

(i) RITEREBERITER - RITEHOEK

Eéﬁ\ MEBEMBRITEFFAR

ERRENHE
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38.

PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES

The following table lists the principal subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally
affected the results or net assets of the Group. To give details of
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in

particulars of excessive length.

38.

TENELAFE

TREINARAEERRUAEEES
FEEFEELTIBZRENARALE
MEAR - EERA HIEMHER
AHBEEERRREBNIE

Place of
incorporation/ Issued and paid Proportion of nominal value of issued share/
Name of subsidiary operation capital registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
WRARER HMAYL/ EEHE CROREMRAE RARMKEERTRG/ AMEAEELH TEEH
s 2017
= "3
Directly Indirectly Directly Indirectly
E# B L i
| % % % %
Crystal Apparel Limited Hong Kong HK$2,000,000 - 100 - 100 Trading of garments
RABE AR Bl 2,000,000/ REES
Crystal Martin Apparel Bangladesh Limited Bangladesh Bangladesh Taka ' - 100 | - 100 Manufacture of garments
267,950,127
A 267,950,127 R8s
BMAER
|
Crystal Knitters Limited Hong Kong HK$7,502,000 100 - 100 - Provision of corporate services
RRBERARAR &8 7,502,000 RELCERS
Crystal Martin Ceylon (Private) Limited Sri Lanka Sri Lanka Rupee - 100 - 100  Manufacture of garments
1,792,466,900 |
EEL S 1,792,466,900 ] Rass
HERREL
Crystal Martin (Cambodia) Limited Cambodia US$8,226,000 - 100 - 100 Manufacture of garments
R 8,226,000% ! ] REEgE
Crystal Martin (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong HK$1,970,497 - 100 - 100 Trading of garments
EEE(BR)BRAR Bl 1,970,497 7T F%25
Crystal Martin International Limited The UK. Great British Pound ! - 100 - 100 Trading of garments
100
£ 10055 REES
Crystal Martin Intimate Macau Macau Pataca H - *100 - 100 Trading of garments
(Macao Commercial Offshore) Limited ("MOP") 100,000 |
RABEAK (RFREEXRY)BRAR 2 100,000 REES
Crystal Sweater Limited Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 - 100 - 100 Trading of garments
RRIXERAE & 5,000,007 \ REE S

> == CRYSTAL INTERNATIONAL GROUP LIMITED S4Bl AR AT mw e e e m o oo e oo m oo oo oo oo oo
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hY —= ey R L
38. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL 38. TEMBRARFE @
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
Place of
incorporation/ Issued and paid Proportion of nominal value of issued share/
Name of subsidiary operation capital registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
WEAR SR HMAL/ EELE BROREMRA KARFBERTRE/ EREAEELH TERH
e 2017
| ZB-N\f I-tF
: Directly Indirectly Directly Indirectly
E& B LS itk
% % % %
Crystal Elegance Industrial Limited Hong Kong HK$1,500,020 - 100 - 100 Trading of garments
(formerly known as Elegance Industrial
Company Limited) :
RILENEEEBRAT &R 1,500,020/ 7 REES
(FIRENBEEERAA)
|
Elegance (Macao Commercial Offshore) Macau MOP100,000 ! - 100 - 100 Trading of garments
Limited
BNR(RFBREBRRK)BRAR 2P 100,000 &7 REES
Regent Garment Factory Limited Vietnam US$26,000,000 - 100 - 100 Manufacture of garments
et 26,000,000% 7T i fREsiE
|
Seiko Sweater (Macao Commercial Offshore)  Macau MOP100,000 - 100 - 100 Trading of garments
Limited ;
B LEV (2FIEREERE) BRAR 2 100,000 M7 I REES
Crystal SL Global Pte. Ltd. Singapore Singapore dollars - 100 - 100 Trading of garments
(formerly known as SL Global Pte. Ltd.) 6,052,605
Crystal SL Global Pte. Ltd. Mg 6,052,605 13 7T fRxg%
(17 SL Global Pte. Ltd.)
|
RERBEREKERAR? The PRC HK$436,320,000 - 100 : - 100 Manufacture of garments
h 436,320,000/ 7 ! fRicsds
* The company is registered in the form of wholly foreign owned enterprise. * REIAINEBE R ER M -

None of the subsidiaries has issued any debt security at the end
of the year or at any time during the year.

REREFAREMRREZENE R R
BRTEMNEHRES -
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39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 39. Zx A BB 78 4R 7 &
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> == CRYSTAL INTERNATIONAL GROUP LIMITED S4Bl AR AT mw e e e m o oo e oo m oo oo oo oo oo

COMPANY

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
US$'000 US$'000
F=x FET
ASSETS EE
Non-current asset ERENEE
Investments in subsidiaries RBRARIMNEE 58,242 58,242
Current assets MENEE
Other receivables E b IR 45 40
Amounts due from subsidiaries NG 498,249 569,341
Bank balances and cash RITEBR LIRS 15,789 18,156
514,083 587,537
Total assets BERE 572,325 645,779
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EEkAE
Capital and reserves B R
Share capital A% A 3,654 3,654
Reserves (note 40) @ (M5E40) 568,457 637,598
Total equity R 1B%R 572,111 641,252
Current liability mENAE
Other payables H At ET K1 214 4,527
Total equity and liabilities =k BERE 572,325 | 645,779
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40. RESERVES OF THE COMPANY 40. XN B E

Share Capital ~ Share award Retained
premium reserve reserve profits Total
B3 EE EXfiE RiRBERS REEH o
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
TEr Tin TR T£n TEn
At 1 January 2017 WZZ—tF-A-H - 9,903 - 93,558 103,461
Profit and total comprehensive FRRHEZAKALE
income for the year - - - 101,010 101,010
Shares repurchased and cancelled BB RE SRk - - - 12 12
Issue of shares pursuant to REEERERRN
re-denomination - - - (2,954) (2,954)
Issue of shares on Global Offering, RENBERRTRG -
including exercise of over-allotment B #E{T{E BAEAL AR IE
option (net of listing expenses) (B ERR) 496,111 - - - 496,111
Issue of shares in connection with  BERk(H st £ B &Rk (D
Share Award Scheme B (17) - - - (17)
Recognition of equity-settled RINEREE Rl
share-hased payment expense BERNAFET - - 4,487 - 4,487
Vesting of shares in connection with  EfR {3 #2851 2] B A Y
Share Award Scheme B BAGE 3,714 - (3,714) - -
Dividend paid BARE - - - (64,512) (64,512)
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+E+ZA=1+-H 499,808 9,903 773 127,114 637,598
Loss and total comprehensive FREBR2AERI AR
expense for the year - - - (14,003) (14,003)
Recognition of equity-settled R EEEE RN
share-hased payment expense BERNAFET - - 3,940 - 3,940
Vesting of shares in connection with ~ Efk {3 #2851 2] B A Y
Share Award Scheme B ROGE 3,042 - (3,042) - -
Dividend paid BRRE - - - (59,078) (59,078)
At 31 December 2018 R_E-N\E+-A=1—H 502,850 9,903 1,671 54,033 568,457

N e - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - @ -
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MEHE

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years, as extracted from the audited consolidated
financial statements and the Company’s prospectus dated 23 October

TXHEINAEEBEREMBRFEOREAR
BENMAGBMEDHEALELGEMHRR
RARBBBMA—T—tF+AZ+=BKA

/

]

]

]

]

]

]

]

]

| 2017 is set out below: RER :

]

: RESULTS E 5

]

] Year ended 31 December

: BE+-A=+—ALEE I N
(] 2014 2015 2016 2017 |‘ 2018‘:
: —F-mFE ZFT-h FIFRF T LF I ZB-N\F
' US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$°000
] FET FET TFET FET SFESE
]

]

(] Revenue Wz 1,700,714 1,688,458 1,763,392 2,177,994 2,495,966
]

]

] Profit before tax R4 T A S ) 96,969 79,859 144,780 174,371 170,000
: Income tax expense Frig®if X (15,166) (11,574) (21,128) (25,854) (20,808)
]

(] Profit for the year F s 81,803 68,285 123,652 148,517 149,192
]

]

0 Attributable to: AT AL E :

! Owners of the Company VAN/NCTEZ 2 =N 81,803 68,285 123,652 148,429 149,192
: Non-controlling interests IR R 2 - - — 88 -
]

: 81,803 68,285 123,652 148,517 i 149,192 I
A S — —
] N

s ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAE

]

: At 31 December

| R+=-—A=+-—H S _
: 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 \=
| ZE-OF ZE—hHF ZE—RF T—tF I ZE—N\F
(] US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$’000
: FE7 FET FET S FER
]

: Total assets BERE 1,232,093 1,073,864 1,360,823 1,821,725 1,839,952
i Total liabilities BEEsE (692,225) (541,904) (1,052,594) (910,957) (853,513)
]

: Total equity SRR 539,868 531,960 308,229 910,768 986,439
]

: Attributable to: AR AT &L

0 Owners of the Company ViN/NEIEZF =N 539,868 531,960 305,558 910,768 986,439
: Non-controlling interests FEPE R - - 2,671 - =
! |

| 539,868 531,960 308,229 910,768 I 986,439
| \

\
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